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“On Aug. 10, 1895 at Ledge Rock Baptist Church in Wake County,  where Rev. A. B. Wyche was pastor, a resolution was passed in the Cedar Grove Association dividing the Cedar Grove Association into two separate Associations,  with the Lynchburg and Durham Railroad as the dividing line” … thus the East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist Association was born.




~      Introduction     ~

“And it came to pass in those old days…” is a statement found in the Holy Bible that speaks to events of yesterday, things that have already happened that address the questions of who, what when, where, and how.  An event happened 119 years and it was the birth of East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist Association of North Carolina, Inc. (ECGMBA) on August 10, 1895!    In Isa. 46:9, The Lord told the Prophet Isaiah to tell God’s people to “Remember the former things long past, For I am God, and there is no other...”  Hence this booklet is designed to provide brief histories of the members churches in the East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist Association that chronicle how Our Lord blessed them to continue to do the Great Commission, to “go and make disciples of all the nations, baptizing them in the name of the Father and the Son and the Holy Spirit…” (Matt. 28:19, 20) These churches from Durham, Granville, Orange, Person, and Wake Counties bound themselves in humble submission to Almighty God and formed a union committed to service, spiritual growth, Christian education, fellowship, evangelism and worship by the grace and guidance of Our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ and the Holy Spirit. 

The ECGMBA was founded in the last decade of the 19th Century in Wake County North Carolina at Ledge Rock Missionary Baptist Church where a resolution was passed that split the Association in half because of its size that posed logistical, travel and other administrative concerns.  Hence, East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist Association began.  According to the ECGMBA Constitution, Article III, the Association is composed of Missionary Baptist churches that: 1) teach missionary Baptist policies and doctrines, 2) meet financial requirements as specified by the Association and 4) participate in the activities of the Association.  Article II of the Constitution houses  the purpose and goals of the ECGMBA which include the following: 1) to develop and encourage Christian fellowship, 2) to promote spiritual assistance to member churches, congregations and auxiliaries, 3) to enhance the quality of life in the community, 4) to support the General Baptist State Convention of NC, Inc. and its objectives, 5) to provide support to the ordaining council and 6) to support the Lott Carey Baptist Foreign Mission Convention and the National Baptist Conventions.  The Association is composed of pastors and preacher of the, deacons, deaconesses, missionaries, church and association officers, ministries in mission, and servants in God’s vineyard.  “For where two or three are gathered together in my name, there am I in the midst of them.” (Matt. 18:20)   Initially 42 churches heard God’s call and linked together.  In 2014 thirty nine (39) remain in the Association circle. 

Specifically, what characterized the member churches of ECGMBA and what motivated the majority of them to remain united in mission under the authority of Almighty God?  This publication’s aim is to capture their unique stories and bring to remembrance the continued relevancy of the Association in the 21st Century.  For there is strength in unity. “…there is but one God, the Father, from whom all things came and for whom we live; and there is but one Lord, Jesus Christ, through whom all things came and through whom we live.”  Thanks be to God ECGMBA is still alive!  

This publication could not have been completed without help from the faithful. Appreciation is expressed to the church clerks and pastors, missionary presidents and other church leaders that provided historical briefs and church photographs, Melissa Battle, Jasmine Holloway, Burley and Lucious Clayton, Deacon Johnny Pettiford, Moderator, Rev. J. Eric Morgan, III and the Executive Board under the leadership of Chair, Dr. William Richardson and the History and Advisory Committees for supporting this initiative. 

Rev. Joyce Daye Clayton
ECGMBA History/Archives & Advisory Committees Chairperson 
September 20, 2014 
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“Jesus answered them, "Destroy this temple, and in three days I will raise it up." The Jews then said, "It took forty-six years to build this temple, and will You raise it up in three days?" But He was speaking of the temple of His body.” (John 2:19-22) 


“For even as the body is one and yet has many members, and all the members of the body, though they are many, are one body, so also is Christ.” (1 Cor. 12:12) 11 And he gave some, apostles; and some, prophets; and some, evangelists; and some, pastors and teachers; 12 For the perfecting of the saints, for the work of the ministry, for the edifying of the body of Christ: 13 Till we all come in the unity of the faith, and of the knowledge of the Son of God, unto a perfect man, unto the measure of the stature of the fulness of Christ: 14 That we henceforth be no more children, tossed to and fro, and carried about with every wind of doctrine, by the sleight of men, and cunning craftiness, whereby they lie in wait to deceive; 15 But speaking the truth in love, may grow up into him in all things, which is the head, even Christ: 16 From whom the whole body fitly joined together and compacted by that which every joint supplieth, according to the effectual working in the measure of every part, maketh increase of the body unto the edifying of itself in love.” (Eph. 4:11-16)


“25 That there should be no schism in the body; but that the members should have the same care one for another.  26 And whether one member suffer, all the members suffer with it; or one member be honoured, all the members rejoice with it.” (1 Cor. 12:25-26)


“For where two or three are gathered together in my name, there am I in the midst of them.” (Matt. 18:20)   



Cameron Grove Missionary Baptist Church
816 Berwyn Avenue, Durham, NC 27704
Rev. Jessie L. Alston, Pastor
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Established 1901

Before this church became a reality, there were a few people having service under a brush harbor.  In the year of 1901they moved the services to s storehouse on the farm of Brother Ben Ham Cameron.  During the first two years the church had not been completely organized, but it was under the leadership of Rev. T.L. Bobbitt.  With the aid of Rev. Ben Neal, Rev. J.R. Brandon and Brother Daniel Morgan from Ledge Rock Baptist Church our church was officially organized.  In the year of 1903 the church was moved to the school house on Brother Ben Cameron’s farm, with Rev. Bobbitt as Pastor.  The first members to join the church were Sister Leatha jones and Brother Nick Jones. Next to join were Sisters Lessie Pierce, Mary Taylor and Brother Arthur Jones. The membership grew further as time passed.  The first to serve as Deacons were Brothers Gilbert Roberts, King Morris and Nick Jones.  During the stay at the school house, the Lord inspired the few in number to build a church.  So a few men, namely Rev. Bobbitt, Rev. Brandon, Rev. Sidney Taylor and Brother Daniel Morgan got together and went to talk to Brother Ben Cameron about building a church.Brother Ben Cameron gave the land and the timber to build the church.  He asked only that it be built by the railroad tracks and that the church be named after him.  Again the same few men got together and cut the timber and carried it to the saw mill to get dressed for lumber to build the church.  These men worked faithfully until the church was built.  During the first 20 years, Rev. Bobbitt served as Pastor.  He always encouraged us to keep looking to God and move forward.  In the year of 1921, Rev. Bobbitt resigned, and in that same year, God sent us yet another great leader Rev. Stanfield.  As our Pastor, the church continued to grow and prosper.  In the year 1922, Rev. Stanfield resigned.  We were determined to press on in the name of Jesus Christ.  Through much prayer the Lord sent us Rev. James Edward Thorpe as our Pastor. When he became our Pastor and leader the membership grew from thirteen to about fifty members.  By the year 1947, the church building had gotten old and the road to the church was very rough. Rev. Thorpe, Deacon Arthur Parker and Brothers Edward Parker, Fletcher Satterfield, Lewis Brandon and James Climon started to look for another site for the church.  God led them to the present site.  While the new church was being built, worship continued at the Mount Level Baptist Church.  We moved to our new church in April of 1949.  It had sub floors and a wood heater.  We were so grateful to God for answering our prayers, that we did not mind the floor nor the wood heater.

Under Rev. Thorpe’s leadership, we made tremendous progress.  An usher board was organized with Deacon Edward Parker as the first President.  A Missionary circle was organized with Sister Leatha Jones as the first President.   A Junior Choir was organized by Deacon Arthur Parker.  A Junior Missionary Circle was organized with Sister Lola Mae Taylor as President.   Rev. Thorpe was a great inspiration to the church, and under his leadership other great leaders came forth into the ministry, Brothers Arthur Parker, William McNeal, Thelma Taylor, Odell Davis, Edward Parker and Sister Robertha Vanhook.  We were having service once a month, then another was added.  The first Sunday speakers were Rev. Harold Timberlake and Rev. Thelma Taylor.  In the year 1968, God saw a need to call Rev. Thorpe home.  We were saddened, yet we were grateful to have such a man to serve as our Pastor and leader for so many years.  In 1969, Rev. Horace Bridges became our Pastor.  Under his leadership new pews were installed, the cemetery fenced in, and the church was renovated with the additional of a baptismal pool.  During the Rev. Horace Bridges tenure the founding cornerstone for the church was laid.  God called two more into the ministry, Brothers Johnny Leak and Albert Richardson.  The Youth Choir was reorganized and the Tot Choir was organized.  In 1972, Sister Luna Hicks started an Annual Family Night Program.  Through the Family Night’s financial contribution and organ was donated to the church.  Sister Lillie Climon was honored as the Mother of the church under Rev. Bridges’ leadership.  A Deaconess Board was organized with sister Nellie Walker as the President.  The Trustee Board was reorganized.  Rev. Bridges resigned in 1979.  Rev. Kenneth R. Duff came to us in June of 1980.  Under his leadership, the church continued to grow.  The Fellowship Hall and Pastor’s study was built and furnished.  On September 24, 1982 the cornerstone was laid.  More land was purchased, office equipment was purchased and heating and air condition was installed.  Five Deacons were added to the Board, Brothers James Justice, Jr, Gilbert Johnson, Eugene McNeal, Maxie Smith and Winifred Booth. A Male Chorus was organized with Brother Waymon McDougald as President.  Another solider was called into the ministry, Sister Lola Mangum.  Worship service increased to every Sunday in the month, including the Fifth Sunday.  Rev. Duff resigned in the year of 1985.

In July of 1986, God sent us His humble servant, Rev. Jesse L. Alston.  Since his leadership began, the church progressed even further to a paved parking lot, a new piano and a xerox machine. The Pastor’s Aide committee was reorganized.  Seventeen ministers were licensed to preach, Sister Marilyn Booth, Brother Eugene McNeal, Brother Maxie Smith, Brother Winfred Booth, Brother Kelvin Parker, Brother Cedric Mebane, Brother Johnnie Whitted, Sister Rosemary Everett, Sister Mable Robinson, Sister Addie Poteat, Brother Grady Williams, Brother Goldsmith Cates, Sister Helen Bell, Brother Tyrone Alston, Brother Emmanuel Dunegan, Sister Rosa Hester and Sister Geneva Golder.  Rev. Lola Mangum, Rev. Eugene McNeal, Rev. Maxie Smith, Rev. Charles Murrill and Rev. Mable Robinson were ordained.  Five Deacons were added, Brothers Oneal Reams, Lonnie Lloyd, Wilbert Johnson, Herman Gibson and Greg Applewhite. Ten Trustees were added, Brothers Johnnie Whitted, Ollie Cates, Charles Jay, Leroy Cates, Len Curington, Wayne Robinson, Dennis Belvin, Donald Johnson and Kenny Justice.  Rev. Alston helped organize the J.L. Alston Mass Choir and Youth Department.  He organized the Annual Handicap Program to aide church members with financial need, helped develop an orientation booklet for new members and was instrumental in forming a Senior Citizen Organization.  Renovations to the church were completed in September 2001 that included an expansion of the sanctuary, new classrooms, fellowship hall, offices and furniture. The latest accomplishment during Pastor Alston’s tenure came in 2013, when the mortgage to the church was paid off. Out of the one hundred and thirteen years we have been blessed with only six Pastors.  Pastor Thorpe left due to death after forty years of service.  Sister Queenie McNeal was the first woman Superintendent of the Sunday School.  We’ve had many ups and downs through the years, but we’ve had many joyous moments together, it is our determination to keep pressing on in the name of Jesus.
Cedar Grove Baptist Church
Rev. Jessie Timberlake, Jr. 
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Greater Cleggs Chapel Baptist Church
Reverend Louis Cash
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1892

The Cleggs Chapel Baptist Church of Christ was founded in 1892 on land donated by Mr. Cleggs.  The name was later changed to Cleggs Chapel Missionary Baptist Church.  We have record of a land purchase on May 2, 1918 from Mr. and Mrs. Charlie G. Read.  The land acquisition was handled by Deacon Henry B. Royster, Deacon S.F. Clayton and Deacon W.A Clayton.  The first Pastor, noted in our record, was Rev. John Sanford.

Since our establishment, many projects have been completed.  Electricity was installed in 1947.  In 1950, oil replaced the church’s wood burning furnaces.  Under the leadership of Rev. Andrew A. Chavis, a new building was erected which included a fellowship hall with a kitchen, gas heat and air conditioning, as well as, indoor restrooms.

Former Deacons were:  Deacons Percy Bass, Raymond Burroughs, Charlie Burton, Matthew Burton, James Cash, Dan Cousins, Timothy Grate, Howard Hamlett, Linard Hamlett, George Harris, Jr., Roosevelt Lawson, Graham Long, Lee Lunsford, Teddus Mitchell, Calvin Palmer, Ellis Ragland and Woodrow Wilkins.  Deacons Charlie Burton, Matthew Burton and Eric Cash served as Chairmen of the Deacon Board. 

Our Pastor, Rev. Louis Cash, has served as Trustee, Deacon, and Choir Director of the Youth Choir of this choir.  By God’s mighty hand, Rev. Cash was called to preach and teach the word.  It was God’s plan to have him lead his home church.  Under Pastor Cash’s guidance and leading of the Holy Spirit, the congregation grew spiritually and in membership.  September 2014, we will celebrate Rev. Cash’s 20th Pastoral Anniversary.

The Groundbreaking Ceremony for our new sanctuary was held on Saturday, January 14, 2006.  The first service in our new sanctuary was in November, 2006 during our Homecoming Celebration.   

Just a few of the many accomplishments during Pastor Cash’s tenure at Greater Cleggs Chapel are as follows: 
· Implementation of the Church Constitution and By-Laws
· Family & Friend Day was founded
· Praise Teams along with the Dance & Mime Ministries were organized
· New computers and network systems were installed for clerical and financial staff.
· Christian Education Department was organized, giving birth to new ministries such as Senior Citizens Ministry, Marriage Support, Singles Ministry, and scholarship fund.
· Women’s Conference
· Youth Church was established - sponsoring different activities for our youth such as   church trips to include places as Baltimore, Maryland; Orlando, Florida; Birmingham, Alabama and more.   Other activities to include College Tours, Youth Explosion / Youth Summit, Back to School Supply Give-a- Way, working with Habitat for Humanity and more.

Under Rev. Cash’s leadership, we sponsored Sunday’s Showcase (similar to BET’s Sunday Best).  Through this endeavor, this church afforded the opportunity for to individuals in the church and community to reach their goal of recording a CD.  2011 Runner-up was Christopher Clauden (South Boston, Virginia) / Winner was Cheylaine Murchinson (Raleigh, North Carolina).  2012 Runner-up was Gloria Green (Creedmoor, North Carolina) / Winner was Christopher Clauden (South Boston, Virginia).  The winners were able to record a cd with Joseph Jones of MYROH Music in Durham, North Carolina. Both years, Dove Award Winning Artist – Maurette Brown Clark served as a judge and ministered as our Guest Artist.  

We were blessed with a mind blowing historical moment as Tuskegee Airmen Historian, Leonard “Hawk” Hunter, came to speak on two occasions.  The wealth of knowledge shared was amazing.

Our Drama Ministry has taken off and sponsored several productions:
· Easter – The Cross, The Grave, The Resurrection (2010)
· Black History Drama – Journey to Freedom (2011)
· Christmas – A Promise Fulfilled (2012) 
· Easter – From Gethsemane to the Cross (2013)
· The Book of Ruth will be dramatized December, 2014

As a congregation we stand on the scripture this year is Jeremiah 29:11  “ For I know the plans I have for you, declares the LORD, plans to prosper you and not to harm you, plans to give you hope and a future.”








First Calvary Missionary Baptist Church
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In 1884 First Calvary Baptist Church was organized as Second Baptist Church.  It was located on Cameron Street which is now Cornell Street.  History records that Mr. Edward Mitchell spearheaded the organization of Second Baptist Church by starting a Sunday School Bible Class about 100 yards westward of Cornell Street, in a rural county school. In 1885: A year later, Mrs. Cinda Turner deeded land to members of Second Baptist Church.  A small, wooden building was constructed on this land on what is now Cornell Street.  Rev. Henry Johnson was the Pastor.  History records that between 1885 and 1926, Rev. Oscar Miller served as Pastor and the building was enlarged to some extent under his Pastorship.  Nor further information is available regarding Rev. Miller.
In 1926: Rev. WD Smith became Pastor and launched the task of acquiring the current site for the church on the corner of Morehead and Kent Streets. From 1926 to 1953:  Three (3) additional Ministers were called to Pastor the Second Baptist Church: Rev. EW Walker, Rev. HH Hart, and Rev. CE McLester.  The church progressed exceedingly well under their leadership.  NOTE: Rev. HH Hart was called twice to Pastor First Calvary.  He served the church from 1935-1937 and again from 1947-1953.  Rev. Hart’s return to Pastor the church began a great era of progress.  The building fund again became a priority.  The Berry Construction Company, a local black firm, was hired to build the three-story brick structure that became a staple in the West End Community.  In 1949, the name of the church was changed from Second Baptist Church to First Calvary Baptist Church (the process for this “name change” is not available).  Worship service was held for the first time in the new brick building on Sunday, July 10, 1949.
In June 19, 1954 the church called Rev. AL Thompson as Pastor after the death of Dr. HH Hart in 1953.  Rev. AL Thompson’s installation service was held the first week of October 1954.  Under his leadership, the church mortgage was paid off.  Additionally, he initiated a progressive building plan with the vision of construction building.  It was at this time that the property adjacent to the 1311 Morehead Avenue structure was acquired.  Pastor AL Thompson served First Calvary Baptist Church for 25 years, from 1954-1979.  Because of his failing health, he resigned in June of 1979.  During the next few months the Associate Pastor, Rev. WJ Wilson, along with the church Deacons were responsible for services while various ministers were interviewed for Pastor.  On December 28, 1979, Rev. VS Thompson of Statesville, North Carolina was called to Pastor the church.  In January 1980, Rev. AL Thompson died from failing health and a memorial service in his honor was held on January 10th of that year.
In 1980 on the second Sunday of February 1980, Rev. VS Thompson began his Pastoral duties.  He initiated several changes and quite a bit of progress was made.  Some of the changes he helped develop included a new order of service, bonding of the treasurer, a requested audit of the annual budget and numerous other additions.  Under the leadership of VS Thompson the church celebrated its 100th Anniversary on October 27, 1984.  The banquet was held at the WG Pearson Cafeteria on the campus of NCCU.  Rev. VS Thompson served as Pastor for five (5) years, resigning in January 1986.  As a result, the church spent most of 1986 searching for a Pastor.
1987: In January 1987, after a long search, Rev. Paul Jackson accepted the call to Pastor at First Calvary.  Under his leadership, the church was successful in construction the educational building, with connecting walkways to the main edifice.  The building remained the vision of the church of many, many years and represented the fervent prayers of the body.   Rev. Jackson eliminated all “fund raisers” except the twice a year church-wide sacrificial offerings, declaring that the church would be a “tithing” church.  He originated the motto “An Exciting Church Excited About Its Mission”.  Rev. Jackson served for three (3) years, resigning in June 1991.  Once again, Minister WJ Wilson and the Deacons kept the church running smoothly, while various ministers were interviewed by the pulpit committee. Additionally, in June of 1991 the church extended a call to Pastor Fredrick A. Davis of Fort Lauderdale, Florida.  At this time, he was a Pastor in Huntsville, Alabama.  Pastor Davis began his Pastorate on Sunday, August 25, 1991 and his installation service was held on Sunday, November 10, 1991.  Today, under the energetic leadership of Pastor Davis, the church continues to grow rapidly in all ministries.  He has organized an extensive network of ministries that reflect the talents and needs of the church and the community.  The many accomplishments, improvements, and additions that have occurred since Fredrick Davis became Pastor and leader are numerous.  He continues to support the tithing and sacrificial programs as the primary sources of financing the work of the church.  New church vans were purchased, a church bus purchased, the enlargement and paving of the church parking lot, the remodeling of the kitchen, updating of the computer system, employing additional full-time office staff, addition of air-conditioning to the Fellowship Hall, and organization of the Deacon Family Ministry.  Additionally, First Calvary has sent many ministers out into the field.  There have been numerous ministers that have been licensed/ ordained and even become Pastors under the leadership of Pastor Davis.  These accomplishments are only the beginning.  In 2008, construction took place at the 1311 Morehead Avenue location to build a new church edifice and fellowship hall.  The newly constructed building was dedicated on Sunday, January 24, 2010.
Pastor Davis was instrumental in developing Calvary Ministries of the West End Community, Inc.  This non-profit organization is the result of a vision that began at the church as it sought to assist in providing a remedy for the many ills that plagued the community. Under Pastor Davis’ leadership, Calvary Ministries has renovated the old Lyon Park School, which is now the Community Family Life and Recreation Center at Lyon Park.  

Frist Community Baptist Church
Rev. Dr. William Richardson, Pastor
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First Community Missionary Baptist Church was founded in the year nineteen hundred eighty-six  (1986) by a group of inspired people who had a love for God and who had hopes of a new place to worship.  

The charter members held their initial meeting on the 4th Sunday of November in that year. They met each week to organize. Upon locating a place to worship, the group asked Rev. William Richardson to serve as the group's spiritual leader and pastor.  Rev. Richardson promptly accepted the offer. 

Rev. William Richardson, Sr. is the founder and pastor of First Community Missionary Baptist Church where he has served as pastor for over 25 years.  A native of Durham, North Carolina, he received his secondary education in the Durham Public School system.  He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Religion from Shaw University, an Associate’s degree in Religion and a Master’s of Divinity degree from Southeastern Theological Seminary. In May 2000, he was awarded the Doctor of Humane Letters Honorary Degree by the Apex School of Theology.  

Twenty-seven years later we are still meeting, growing, fellowshipping, and praising His Holy name.


First Ledger Rock Baptist Church
Reverend Clay
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1975 – 2014

Frist Ledge Rock Baptist Church is a branch from the original Ledger Rock Baptist Church that was located off Highway 50.  The original Ledge Rock Baptist Church was destroyed to make room for the Falls of the Neuse Project.  After it was confirmed that we could no longer remain in our location, an effort was made to find a site that was suitable to all members.  When this became impossible, the original Ledger Rock divided and we became the First Ledge Rock Baptist Church on Redwood Road in Durham, North Carolina..

We were organized in 1975 with Deacon Calvin Pettiford serving as our leader, assisted by Deacon Harry Hall.  The first meeting was held in the home of Deacon Hall and a small group of determined beleivers met and decided to form a church.  We agreed on the name that we use today, First Ledge Rock Baptist Church.  The first officers of the church were: Deacons Calvin Pettiford and Harry Hall and Trustees Romie Street, Homer T. Green, Silas Walker and Johnny Pettiford.  Sister Navie Watkins was elected the first church secretary and Romie Street as the first church treasurer.

We began meeting in a small house adjacent to Deacon Hall and during this time we invited different ministers to come and speak to us.  When the time was right the group called Rev. C. R. Stone as the first Pastor of the First Ledger Rock Baptist Church.  His wife, Ms. Mudy Stone replaced Ms. Denise Pettiford as our musician. 

After several years of hard work and development of close family ties in Christian fellowship, we decided to build our church.  With the help of Mr. C.R. Wellons we were able to acquire the necessary land, equipment, and with the use of members and friends the erection of our church was realized.

Reverend Stone served as pastor for almost 14 years.  Rev. Tommy Steele served as pastor for one year.

In January, 1990, Rev. Louis E. Cash was called to serve as the third pastor of the Frist ledger Rock Baptist Church. During his tenure, the burning of the church mortgage was celebrated, a highlight forever embedded into our hearts.  Through the help and leadership of God we were able to realize that all things are possible when God is in charge.

We began the year of 1991 with Joy, excitement, determination and the spiritual guidance of our Savior.  The years just seem to roll by and we experienced growth in membership, participation in various programs sponsored by East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist Association and fellowship with our neighboring churches. 

As time passed, we experienced some good days and some cloudy days.  But through it all we continued to grow spiritually through Bible Study, religious workshops, planned study groups and sharing of blessing and victories through the help of God.  We added trustees, deacons and associate ministers who have been instrumental in church growth as well as other support groups in our congregation.

We have experienced changes in pastors as we continue to serve God.  As previously stated Reverend C. R. Stone was the first pastor followed by Reverend Tommy Steele, Rev. L.E. Cash, Rev B. A. Burch, Reverend Walter Vinson, Reverend J. R. Fogg, and currently the church under the leadership of Rev. Sylvester Clay, pastor.



Greenfield Baptist Church
Pastor, Rev. Hayward L. Dock, Sr.
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Established 1887

In the year of 1887 a few years after the emancipation, the greenfield Baptist Chruch was organized .  Its founders were Walther Hawkins, Elizah Bullock…

Jones Chapel Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Ronald K. Booker
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Established 1881

In the Year of our Lord 1881, a persevering and dedicated man, the Reverend Watkins Jones, sensed a need for organized worship in his community. He called together a group of staunch and spirit-filled individuals to unite in prayer and to form a congregation for the purpose of worshiping Almighty God. Among those charter supporters of the church were John Epps, Carraway Jones, Green Talley, Bob Jay, Shadrick Street, Keely Cousin, and Jack Beard. The wives of these men were also loyal and instrumental to the cause. Among them were Anna Liza Jones, Sadie Cousin, Dora Jones, and Susan Beard.

Originally, worship was held in a log house that was approximately two hundred feet east of where the church now stands.  On October 28, 1886 a deed was recorded at the Person County Courthouse concerning the parcel of land for the church and was duly executed and recorded by John C. Pass, Clerk of Superior Court.

Around the turn of the century (the exact date is not known), a small white clapboard sided structure was built facing the then main road through the community- a dirt road whose bed is barely discernible today, which lies directly behind today’s existing structure. This road was the only access to the church.

The church was a one-room affair with two wings to either side of the pulpit, the “Amen Corners”. The occupants of these corners were the Deacons, who sat in the left wing as one faces the pulpit and the Deacon’s wives and the saintly women of age in the right hand wing. This convention survives to this day and is especially notable on Communion Sundays. Men and women sat separately, left and right of the main aisle, similarly, in the main sanctuary and, though not taught, vestiges of this also remain.   

A large wood and coal burning “pot-bellied” stove provided heat in the cold months and a sexton was required to come early to “set” the fire. Sometime during the early years a room was added to one side of the pulpit to serve as the Pastor’s Study.

In the early 1950’s the church building was lifted with mules and turntables and turned 180 degrees to face toward the newly built state road and the old access road was abandoned. A new basement level was also dug to provide additional space for fellowship gatherings.
In the early 1960’s, a new addition was made at the rear of the church to provide classrooms, indoor plumbing and a new Pastor’s Study. A new brick veneer exterior finish was also added. An interesting note for those interested in architecture: upon close inspection, the bricks used bear the imprint of the “Sign of the Fish”, bricks intended for church construction. In the mid 1960’s, magnificent stained glass windows were donated by various families in memory of loved ones who were instrumental in the church’s founding and growth.

During the 1980’s, new carpet was installed and cushions were added to the pews. In the 1990’s new lighting fixtures were installed in the main sanctuary. In the early 2000’s, a new handicapped ramp was constructed, which significantly altered the front and south aspects of the church.  Plans for other improvements and expansions are under way.

For many years, regular church services were held on the first Saturday and Sunday of the month. Saturday meetings were finally dropped in favor of church conferences on Friday night before the 1st Sunday. In the early days, pastors traveled by horseback or horse and buggy and often spent nights and at times, whole weekends, with different church families because of the time involved in traveling and road conditions.  

Revival meetings in the early days were all day affairs with mid-day and evening meals being served before the afternoon and evening services. Baptismal services, which always concluded revival week, were carried out at a convenient local pond or stream.

God has blessed Jones Chapel through its 133 years to have a succession of pastors. In addition to the founder, Reverend Watkins Jones, God has provided leadership during the years of 1881 to about 1920 the following: Reverend Keely Cousin, Reverend Miller, Reverend Mays, Reverend Sandy Wade, Reverend Stanfield, Reverend Charlie Harris, Reverend Yaunt White, Reverend Junious Taylor, Reverend Hugh Tilley, Reverend Walter Blackwell from about 1920 to 1927, when death ended his service), Reverend Edward Thorpe (from 1927 to 1937) Reverend Ulysses R. Booker (from 1937 until his death in 1983), Reverend Wilbert L. Richardson (from 1984 to 1994) and Reverend Ronald K. Booker from January 1997 to the present.

The present Deacon Board consists of Deacon Thomas Holloway, Jr. chairman, Deacon Isaac Jones, Deacon Russell Lunsford, and Deacon James Williams. 

The members of Jones Chapel Missionary Baptist Church are grateful to Almighty God for His Grace and Providential Care and we pray that He will continue to smile upon us. 
In Jesus Name, Amen.


Lattisville Grove Baptist Church
Reverend George Crews, III
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Established 1879


In 1879, four men saw the need for a place of worship in their community and answered God’s call. Thus, Lattisville Grove Missionary Baptist Church, affectionately known as LGMBC, was created.  Although it was created from meager beginnings, LGMBC has consistently grown and served the community.   Over the years God has blessed LGMBC with major accomplishments that were used to propel LGMBC forward into the ministry that is today. 

On March 17, 2002, Pastor George Crews, III was installed as pastor of LGMBC.  Pastor Crews came to LGMBC with a vision of new ministries for the church family.  In the short period of time that Pastor Crews has been here, God has caused an increase to the church in many areas.  In 2007, LGMBC began conducting two Sunday Worship Services (8 am and 10:45 am) to accommodate the growing congregation.  

Lattisville Grove Missionary Baptist Church continues to grow in membership which is attributed to the power of the Holy Spirit and Lattisville Grove Missionary Baptist Church’s firm stand on the principles of God’s Word.


Lawson Chapel Baptist Church
Reverend Dr. Langston Logan, Sr.
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Established 1871

The illustrious past of the Lawson Chapel Missionary Baptist Church, begun 140 years ago with Annis Lawson, a slave, who saw the need to have a place of worship in [her] community.  The church was built in 1871 on a site given to her by her slave master, Billy Henry Lawson. Thus, the name Lawson Chapel Baptist Church was declared.  

The church was built of logs hauled by Frank Bailey and Becky Lawson on an ox cart.  Annis Lawson, the Mother of Joe, Monroe, and Bellee Lawson; and Frank Bailey, Virgia Bailey and Milly Jones, organized the church.  The first nails used in the construction of the building were given by Annis Lawson and Virgia Bailey.

To organize the church, members were borrowed from Cedar Grove, Bethel Hill, and Mill Creek Churches (the latter two were white churches). Adeline Jeffers was one of the borrowed members.  These pioneers conducted a community prayer meeting and thirty persons were converted, baptized, and became official members of the Lawson Chapel Baptist Church.

In 1937, land was purchased and the original church was constructed under the pastoral leadership of Rev. W. M. Fuller with Brother Hughie Jeffers as the contractor.  Later the original church was torn down and the salvageable lumber was used in the present structure.  While the church was being constructed, regular monthly worship services were held in the Lee Jeffers School.  Following Rev. W. M. Fuller, many other ministers continued to serve Lawson Chapel including Rev. J. J. Freeman, Rev. H. Albert Smith, Rev. U. R. Booker and Rev. L. S. Thompson.  Rev. A. G. Thompson served as the next pastor.  Rev. S. C. Terry, and Rev. Charles L. Coleman made many accomplishments and renovations.  Under the leadership of the Rev. Allandus Wright, Jr., the church parsonage was purchased, which is still owned by the church today.  Our next pastor was the Rev. Keith B. Wiley, who started a Prison Ministry and An “Emergency Fund” for individuals who were experiencing economic difficulties.

For the past 25 years, our current pastor has been the Reverend Dr. Langston D. Logan, Sr.  Under Pastor Logan’s leadership, a Mid-Day Service on Wednesday of each week was established.  In addition, Joint Sunrise Service is held with the following neighboring churches: Elijah Grove and Old Mount Zion and Watch Night Service is held with Shady Hill and Vernon Hill Missionary Baptist Churches.  Pastor Logan’s most esteemed accomplishment was the purchased of 103.52 acres of land in 1997, in which a new church is being constructed.   We are still awaiting its completion. 

Our Current Officers:  Associate Pastors: Rev. Rick Daniel, Rev. Elizabeth P. McCoy, Rev. Laura Williams, and Rev. Helen Thomas-Inactive, Rev. Marion Jeffers-Inactive.  

Deacon Board Ministry: Larry Williams, Chair, Josiah P. Thomas, Jr., Vice Chair and members Deacons Bobby R. Holloway, Sr., Roger Jeffers, George Pettiford, Jackie McCoy, and Hezekiah Burke.  Junior Deacons are Thomas Lawson and Patrick Swann.  Trustees Board Ministry: Emmanuel Wallace, Chair, Linda Thomas, Vice, Cassandra Gibson, and Dwight Thomas.

Administrative Staff: Church Clerk, Rev. Elizabeth P. McCoy and Secretary, Linda Thomas; Finance Committee Chair, Freda S. Tillman, Treasurer, Angela Thomas, Financial Secretary, Lora P. Bynum, other members Betsy N. Paylor and Greta Jeffers. Other officers include: Christian Education Director, Gloria Burke; Sunday School Superintendent, Deacon Larry Williams, and Assistant Superintendent Deacon Hezekiah Burke.

Layman’s League: Chair, Michael Holloway, Sr., Larry Williams, Co-Chair and Men of the Church. 

Senior Missionary Ministry:  President, Rev. Elizabeth P. McCoy, 1st Vice Chair, Cathy Lawson, 2nd Vice Chair, Leavia Reed, Secretary, Cynthia Morton; Auxiliary Council Hezekiah Burke, Chair and Christian Education, Gloria Burke.

Scholarship Ministry:  Josiah P. Thomas, Jr., Chair and Joyce Logan, Vice Chair;  Culinary Ministry: Monnie Blackwell and Doris Villines, Co-Chairs;  Usher Board Ministry: Earlene Newman, President, Kayla Baker, Youth Usher Board Chair; First Aid Ministry:  Donna Manning, Chair and Todd Nelso, Vice Chair;  Pastor’s Aid: Hezekiah Burke, Chair, Doris Villines, Vice, and Anne Nelson, Secretary/Treasurer.

Music Ministry:  Rev. Laura Williams, Chair, Linda Thomas, Co-Chair, Jackie McCoy, Co-Chair, Todd Nelson, Musician, Justin Paylor, Dummer, Terry Woody, Bass Guitarist, occasionally assisting Dr. Langston D. Logan, Sr.   Male Chorus:  Hezekiah Burke, President and Michael Holloway, Sr., Vice President.  Gospel Ensemble:  Linda Thomas, President, Emmanuel Wallace, Vice, and Todd Nelson, Pianist/Organist.

Today, we thank God for 143 years of “Building on a Firm Foundation,” which has brought us thus far by faith-leaning on His everlasting arms.  We are truly proud of our heritage and the life of the LAWSON CHAPEL MISSIONARY BAPTIST CHURCH FAMILY, as we celebrate 120th years of being  “Ignited, Inspired, and Engaged in 120 Years of Service to Our Lord and Savior, Jesus, the Christ!”


Ledge Rock Missionary Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Marcellus Tyrone Moore
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Established 1863


In 1863, Ledge Rock Missionary Baptist Church was organized under a bush arbor in upper Wake County, North Carolina. Rev. Lewis Holding served as the first pastor.  Some years later, members constructed a log cabin and completed the process under the leadership of Rev. Will Wyche, uncle of an early member, Luettia Thorpe Philpot. 

In the year of 1891, under the leadership of Rev. W.D. Smith, a frame church was built. It was used as a sanctuary until 1979. While under the leadership of Rev. A.B. Wyche, a resolution was passed on August 10, 1895 at Ledge Rock Missionary Baptist Church establishing the East Cedar Grove Association.

Later, Rev. Daniel Jones served as pastor until 1916. Since 1916, the following have served as pastor of Ledge Rock Missionary Baptist Church: Rev. P.E. Green, Rev. Pierce, Rev. Chavis, Rev. Daye, Rev. Mosby, Rev. O. A. Hester, Rev. Ashe, Rev. J.E. Thorpe, Rev. B.V. Alston, Rev. J. Williams, Rev. Dempsey, Rev. W.B. Johnson and Rev. Nathaniel R. Fuller – 2000 - 2012.  In May of 2014 a new Pastor was name – Reverend Marcellus Tyrone Moore was installed as the current Pastor of Ledge Rock Missionary Baptist Church.

Some of the earlier Deacons were Dec. B. Morgan, Dec. P.P. Eaton, Dec. H. Amey, Dec. L. Thorpe, Dec. R. Eaton, and Dec. John Landis.  In later years, Dec. O. Thorpe, Dec. J. Landis Sr., Dec. James Walker, Dec. D. Wyche, Dec. Charlie Harris, Dec. L. Jones, and Dec. Samuel Philpot served as Deacons.
Ministers who are products of Ledge Rock Missionary Baptist Church are as follows: Rev. N.A. Trice, Rev. J.E. Thorpe, Rev. H.D. Eaton, Rev. P. Eaton, Rev. P. H. Amey, Rev. J.H. Landis Sr., Rev. Wade Mangum, Rev. R. Harris, Rev. D. Alston, Rev. Rudolph Daniel, Rev. Samuel Barnes, Rev. Belinda Barnes, Rev. C. Johnson and Reverend Marcellus T Moore.

The construction of the fall of the Neuse Reservoir by the federal government in the late seventies forced Ledge Rock to seek an alternative site. The members were unable to choose favorable site resulting in the formation of two congregations. Ledge Rock chose a site in Wake County and First Ledge Rock chose a site in Durham County.

In 1979, under the leadership of Rev. B.V. Alston, officials and members of the Ledge Rock Missionary Baptist Church moved into their new church edifice at 4300 Durham Road in Wake County.
Presently, the officers consist of Dec. Tyrone Moore, Chairman of Deacon Board, Dec. John H. Landis Jr., Dec. Benjamin Blount, and Dec. Otis Holder.
Dec. Benjamin Blount, Chairman of Trustees Board, Ywanda Broadway, Treasurer, Jeannetta Moore, Financial Secretary, and Trustee Robert Recard.

Ledge Rock Missionary Baptist Church continues to Thank God for his many blessings.

Lee’s Chapel
Pastor, Reverend T.E. Taylor
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Established 1893


Lee’s Chapel Missionary Baptist Church was established in1893. The founder was Rev. H.W. Stanfield who was better known as Father Stanfield of Durham, NC. We began our worship service in an old fashion Brush Arbor. We later moved into a log cabin, then a frame building. 

During the years we had the following pastors: Rev. J.B. Yancey, Rev. John Daye, Rev. A.H. Thomas, Rev. G.C. Currie, Rev. J.H. Dixion, Rev. C.E. Griffin, Rev. P.E. Green, Rev. W.H. Chambers, Rev. W.L. Wilson, Rev. L.E. Daye, and Rev. Chambers. God greatly blessed the church during the leadership of each pastor through the growth of the church membership and the over-all prosperity of the church. Reverend Chambers was re-elected and Pastored until his death in June of 1953. Rev. J.O. Corbett was his assistant pastor. 

Soon after Rev. Chambers’ death Rev. Corbett was called to pastor. During his tenure the building fund drive was established which proved to be an asset to our growth. With this money a down payment on this edifice was made.  Rev. Corbett served us for twenty –one years and resigned in 1975. At this time we were in the process of building. 

In June 1975 an invitation was extended to Rev. T.E. Taylor who accepted the call and officially assumed duties of pastor in September of 1975. Today, we are in a beautiful brick church with a newly redecorated T.E. Taylor Fellowship Hall. Look how far God has brought us. Our church membership continues to grow. Our outreach ministries work diligently to serve our communities and our church ministries continue to teach and impart the word of God. 



Mt. Calvary Missionary Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Dr. James Smith
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Established 1892

In late April 1892, a Sunday School was organized in a log cabin on the west side of the Norfolk and Western railroad track one mile south of Bahama, North Carolina. Mr. Edward J. Harris presided and ten members were present. In late fall of that year, the Sunday School closed but reopened in the Spring of 1893.Later that year a revival was held; it was during Sunday School meetings and  Revival that plans were made to organize a Church. This Church that “grew out of” a Sunday School was organized November 11, 1893. The log cabin place of worship was an abandoned schoolhouse that stood near the site of the present (2014) church building.  Rev. C.H. Mayes officiated for the first worship service. The charter members were Brothers E.J. Harris, H.C. Harris, J.Daniel Howerton; Sisters Annie Brooks, Sallie Brooks, and Mary Jane Howerton. The Church was later named Mt. Calvary by Brother E.J. Harris who said that name came to him in a vision. The first official Pastor, Rev. J.M. Taylor of Stem, NC, was installed in 1894 and served zealously for two years. Rev. S.W. Ray, the next Pastor, encouraged the members to build a house of worship. As the result of his interest and encouragement, property on which the church now stands (in 2014) was obtained from John Yancey Parker (Father and Grandfather of many former and present-day Mt. Calvary members). Rev. J.C. Lyons of Creedmoor was Pastor when construction began; completion of this house of worship was achieved during the leadership of Rev. W.D. Smith of Roxboro.  Approximately eleven Ministers served as Pastor from 1894 to 1937, each in his own way contributing to the growth of the church; two of these were Rev. J.W.Street of Roxboro, NC and    Rev.T.A. Grady of Durham, NC.  Membership increased considerably and the church prospered.  (Pictures of the first Churches are not available.) 

In 1937, Rev. Thomas Carr Graham of Durham, a graduate of Shaw University, was installed as Pastor. He found the Church in need of a larger and more comfortable house for worship. As a result of his interest and encouragement, the members gave more generously of themselves and their income. In church conference  July 8, 1938 he introduced “The Lord’s Acre Plan” of giving. Members approved and proceeds from this special effort were given in addition to their regular contributions. Under Rev. Graham’s wise counsel and progressive leadership style, planning moved forward. On February 12, 1938, plans for the new church structure were presented to the members and accepted. In June it was decided that the new church building would stand practically in the same spot as the old. In September the old church was torn down and construction was begun. During construction Sunday School and Worship Services were held at Little River School.  On January 9, 1939 the first worship service was held in the new Mt. Calvary Baptist Church.  The first “Lord’s Acre Day” was observed in the new Church December 10, 1939. All members took to the Altar the dollar amounts they had received from their participation in “The Lord’s Acre Plan.” In 1941, the Lord’s Acre Day was changed to the second Sunday in November and was called Homecoming. Payments on the new church were completed after the first Homecoming. The mortgage was burned the second Sunday in December, 1941. As of this update (in 2014), the church continues to observe Homecoming every second Sunday in November with a special program, offering, and fellowship meal.  In 1949 an Education Building was built. During Dedication Services on October 9, 1949 it was named the John B. Jones Education Building in recognition of the late Mr. John B. Jones, a faithful member and Deacon whose loyalty and dependability were unsurpassed.

During Rev. Graham’s pastorate he served as Moderator of the Minister’s Union and of East Cedar Grove Association, Chairman of the Ordaining Council, President of the General Baptist Sunday School Convention, and President of the Ministerial Alliance of Durham. He served also, as Pastor of the West Durham Baptist Church for many years. After twenty-five years of faithful service to Mt. Calvary, Dr. Graham resigned December 13, 1961 because of failing health. His death came in July 1964. A Pulpit Committee, named upon Rev. Graham’s resignation, recommended Rev. J. Neal Hughley, College Minister at North Carolina College; he was unanimously accepted. On March11,1962 Rev. Hughley preached his first sermon as Pastor of Mt. Calvary. Under his leadership, a man of many accomplishments, the church continued to move forward. While still pastoring Mt. Calvary, Rev. Hughley died suddenly July 10, 1974. At the request of both, he and his wife are interred in the Mt. Calvary Church Cemetery near an oak tree.  Rev. Robert Murray, Director of United Campus Ministries at North Carolina College, served as Interim Pastor until September 22, 1974.  Rev. Lonzy Edwards finished the year serving as interim through December 1974.  Rev. Dr. Herbert O. Edwards was the next to be elected. His first worship Service as Pastor was held January 12, 1975. He served faithfully until his resignation September 11, 1977.

Rev. Otha L. Sherrill, fondly called “Mr. Baptist” by friends and associates, served first as interim Pastor from March 1978 until March 1979 when he was installed as Pastor. On doctor’s orders and because of poor health, he retired January2, 1988.  Rev. Vernon Rose, a native of Capetown, South Africa served as Interim Minister January 24, 1988 through August 24, 1988. He felt it his duty to return to his home in South Africa during the problems of Apartheid.  Rev. Rufus L. Johnson was accepted as Pastor September9, 1988 and served through November 24, 1990. He returned to his home church to pastor the church which his late Father founded many years before.  

The current Pastor, Rev. Dr. James W. Smith of Louisburg, North Carolina held his first official Worship Service  as Pastor of Mt. Calvary March 3, 1991 after having earned a B.S. Degree in Commerce and a Juris Doctorate at North Carolina Central University. His Seminary education was received at Southeastern Theological Seminary and Shaw Divinity School. He earned a Doctor of Ministry Degree at Andersonville Theological Seminary in Camilla, Georgia. Dr. Smith has served and continues to serve as a leader of numerous theological and civic organizations, a few of which are: Moderator of East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist Association, Moderator of Moderators for the General Baptist State Convention of NC, the Durham Committee on the Affairs of Black People and many others.  At the time of this writing (July 2014) many accomplishments have been made at Mt. Calvary under the leadership of Rev. Smith, some of which are increased membership, Noonday Bible Study, and various outreach programs. At the time of this update (July 2014) a vigorous renovation is underway; this project will provide conveniences and additional comforts for all worshippers. Our Mission is to worship God, to proclaim and teach the message of Jesus Christ, to be faithful to His Church, and to minister to His people.

Mount Level Missionary Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Dr. William C. Turner, Jr.
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Established 1864

According to many members of Mount Level, the church was established around 1864 in Camp Butner, North Carolina.  Camp Butner is a military base that was fully functioning during World War II, and three African American congregations held services in this area and were evacuated due to government orders.  These churches relocated to Durham, North Carolina.  The identified churches are Mount Level Missionary Baptist Church, Mount Vernon Missionary Baptist Church, and Moore’s Grove Primitive Baptist Church.  Congregants left Camp Butner June 15, 1942.  The church was dismantled by hand, moved to its present location on Hebron Road and reconstructed by church members and local community men and women.  The first lumber used in the building constructed after the move from Butner in the early 1940’s was hauled by mule and wagon fifteen miles from the old building to the present site by Tommy Parker. The newly constructed church foundation was dug by hand.  The church family held its services at Cameron Grove Baptist Church from 1942-1944.  The first service was held at the new location on the first Sunday in May, 1944.  Rev. J. B. Brooks was the pastor.

The original church was located in a deep wooded area near the Durham-Granville County lines east of the Flat River Dam.  It was far off the public road and barely accessible, up a hilly deep rutted track which was nearly impassable during inclement weather.  The church was unknown to many travelers.  It was a small log cabin which provided sanctuary for fifty members.  In 1888 the original log cabin structure was replaced with a wooden frame building that housed wooden plank seats.  It was large and well kept with a spacious church yard and a small cemetery.  The cemetery still exists in Camp Butner and has been restored and designated as a memorial garden.   During the time of the early church, services were held one Sunday per month, but Sunday school was held every Sunday.

Revival was conducted one week during the summer and Baptizing took place in the Flat River on Old Oxford Highway.  Church conference was held each first Saturday of the month.  During church conference meetings, the roll was called and each member would answer and announce the amount of money he or she was paying.  The Rev. J. B. Brooks of Hillsborough was the last Pastor at the Butner site and Cosby Evans, son of the late Deacon Sam C. Evans, was the last church clerk prior to the move from Camp Butner to Durham.  All ministers were selected by a pulpit committee and voted on by the church.  The ministers signed contracts that were renewed yearly, and their salaries averaged between $12.00-$18.00 per month.

The church prospered and expanded.  The old church became too small, and the church membership desired a larger facility.  Building plans were developed and a fund raising committee was established.  Under the leadership of Dr. Clarence G. Newsome, Pastor and Sister Catherine Daye, Committee chair, a brick campaign was introduced.  The fund raising committee requested that each member sacrifice $5.00 per Sunday specifically for the building fund.  The dream of a new church home became a reality in 1995.  Many hard workers died before the completion of their dream of building a church was fulfilled.  They left their footprints in the sand and their legacy behind.

On the first Sunday in May 1995, groundbreaking ceremonies were held for the present building.  Brother Alvin Hayes shoveled the first shovel of dirt.  Since that momentous day, there has been much growth.  For a while, the congregation worshipped in what is now the church fellowship hall and continued with a historic journey to the new sanctuary.  

The dreams of the congregants were finally realized, and the new church was inhabited and dedicated.  Rev. Dr. Clifford A. Jones from Friendship Missionary Baptist Church in Charlotte, North Carolina was our guest preacher.  His topic was “Avoiding the Pot Holes in the Joy Road”.  Dedication of the new church building was held June 2, 1996.  Rev. L Lynch, Rev. Claude Dunston and Dr. Clarence G. Newsome, all former pastors of Mt. Level participated in the services.  One week of praise and worship services were held prior to the final Sunday dedication.  The core vision of the church is fulfilled through its people and their pastor and under-Shepherd, Dr. William C. Turner, Jr., who continues to lead the charge of God and his people to serve humankind.


Mount Vernon Baptist Church
Pastor, Rev. Dr. J. Eric Morgan, III
2109 Moss Hayes Road, Creedmoor, NC 27522
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Established 1872

Our history points to the journey we have traveled.  It traveled from the slanting slopes of bowling mountain to Stem, through the narrow alleys of despair and around some deep curves of difficulties.  However the great architect who designed our pathway has meticulously led us to this point on Moss-Hayes Road in Creedmoor.  The little church with a big heart of 142 years is still “going after the harvest” (Matt. 9:37-38


Mt. Zoar Missionary Baptist Church
Pastor, Rev. Norman Davis
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1865 – 2014

In 1865, a few faithful members desired to worship and fellowship together founded what is now the Mount Zoar Missionary Baptist Church.  Not much is known about the first church since records were not kept from 185=65 to 1899.  The land for the second or “old” church (as senior members refer to it) was given to the church by three white families- the Spencer Suit and Adolph Carpenter families.  The other family name could not be recalled.  It was located in the “Low Land on the Fish Dam Road (about 2 1/2 miles from the present location).  The road’s name was changed to Cheek Road in later years.  The road was reconstructed after the church move to its present location.  

The following pastors worked tirelessly to establish the church and preach on Sundays: Rev. Paul Yancey, 1899-1901; Reverend  A. A. Jones , 1901-1904; Reverend W. J. Sanford, 1094- 1906; and C. H. Dunn, 1906-1914.  The following pastors served Mount Zoar from 1914 to 1967: Reverend Burro, Reverend Hupper, Reverend O. H. Hester, Reverend T.F. Griswell, Reverend Price, Reverend G. W. Thomas, Reverend B.B. Felder and Reverend O. H. Brodie. 

It would be under the leadership and guidance of the Reverend C. H. Dunn that he church would be relocated on the Fish Dam Road, renamed Cheek Road.  Records indicate that the old church was called Zoar or Missouri.  Brother John Holloway went to Raleigh, North Carolina to get the correct name of the church.  The correct name was Mount Zoar Baptist Church.

Although each pastor contributed to the spiritual growth, leadership, and the community involvement and training of the membership, special recognition was given to the Reverend G. W. Thomas.  For approximately twenty-three years, 1928-1949 and 1953- 1954, he toiled diligently and faithfully as a great leader of this congregation.  During Rev. Thomas’ leadership the church was built by the time of his death in 1954. 

Under the leadership of Reverend O. H. Hester, Reverend B. B. Felder, Rev. T.F. Griswell and Reverend O. H. Brodie, the church continued to grow spiritually and the membership increased.  During Rev. T. F. Griswell’s tenure the mortgage burning ceremony was held.  In 1967, the cornerstone was laid by Doris Lodge #28 with Brother Otis M. Thorpe, Jr., presiding. 

Reverend A. H. Parker was called as pastor in 1968.  Under his leadership the church continued to as well as the youth church and several choirs were organized, several Sunday School classes, and the Youth Missionary Circle.  Also during  his tenure air condition and stained windows were installed, land was purchased and the new addition was added with Reverend Parker as the builder and supervisor. 

The Church Centennial Celebration was held May 31, 1971- June 6, 1971 with the following speakers:  Rev. E. H. Whitley, Reverend William E. Daye, Reverend J. R. Crutchfield, Reverend H. L. Bridges and Rev. Been V. Alston.

The dedication service for the new addition was held October 12.1987 .  Reverend Parker was a great leader, teacher, and worked very diligently with  all members of the church and community. . Reverend Parker retired from the Mount Zoar Missionary Baptist Church retired from Mount Zoar Missionary Baptist Church,

Rev. Waddell Franklin Smith was called as pastor, April 10, 1994.  Under his leadership the church grew in membership to over 400 members and the following was implemented:  Senior Citizen’s Annual Trip, Anniversary of Deacons, Deaconesses, and Trustees, Thank-Living Team, Church Pictorial Directory, new lighting in the vestibule, establishment of a relief fund, purchase of a computer, refurbishing of balcony, waterproofing of basement, purchase of a church van, initiated Tape Ministry, New Members Class, Tuesday Morning Bible Study, purchased of new furniture for the fellowship hall and larger office equipment. The church was able to make love offerings to the North Carolina Red Cross, N.C. Food Bank, United Negro College Fund, and the Community Shelter for Hope.


New Calvary Missionary Baptist Church
Rev. Reverend Dr. E. Nathaniel Wall
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Established 1902


In the small community of Gorman, sometimes called Holloway Station, stood an old stone building in which the Calvary Baptist Church was organized.  It was organized by the late Rev. James Holloway during the year of 1902.  It was named Calvary Baptist Church by the founder’s son Oscar Holloway.  In November 1926 the church was moved from its original site on Geer Street to the present site on Burton road and has had many renovations.  Our current Pastor is Dr. E. Nathaniel Wall who started his ministry in March 1988.

Under Pastor Wall’s leadership the church became incorporated by the State of North Carolina and on January 6, 1997 its name was changed from Calvary Baptist Church to New Calvary Church.  The church has several affiliations and various ministries for spiritual growth and development as it continues to bring souls to Christ.  Through Go’s grace and with Him at the forefront His word will continue to be proclaimed at New Calvary Church.

New Hope Granville
Rev. James Isaac, III
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Established1888


On July 2, 1888, one acre of land was purchased in Granville County, North Carolina.  On this land the first church was built and later destroyed by fire.  This forced the leaders of the church to seek another place of worship until a second church was built.  Reverend Jerome Cozart was the church’s first pastor. 

On August 3, 1898, the first East Cedar Grove Association convened at New Hope Granville Missionary Baptist Church.  Reverend Cozart was the moderator.  Before the association was called East cedar Grove Association, it was Cedar Grove Association but was renamed as more churches became affiliated with it.  New Hope Granville joined the new association whose primary focus was to serve as the ruling body of the churches in the organization. 

In 1956, the third church was built.  This facility still is in use today with many additional improvements and structural changes. 

Eleven pastors have served at New Hope Granville Missionary Baptist Church.  Presently, Reverend James Isaac, III serves as pastor.  He was called to pastor at New Hope Granville Missionary Baptist Church in May 2000.  During his tenure as pastor, Reverend Isaac has led the church through many accomplishments.  He has shown his love for God and his fellowman by serving diligently. 


New Hope Person
Pastor, Reverend Wilber L. Richardson
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Established1878

The New Hope Person Missionary Baptist Church was founded in the year of our Lord of 1878.  The first church was built from wood.  It was later located at Sneed’s River in Helena.  There was a period of change from 1878 to 1906 when several clergymen served brief pastorates at the church.  Among those who served were: Rev. Wakin Jones, Rev. J. Yancey, Rev. Byrd Satterfield, Rev. Walter Jones, Rev. S. Wood, Rev. J. Thorpe, Rev. Stephen Thomas and the Rev. James Cates.

The period of change can be likened to the dawn signaling the arrival of a new day with a set of new challenges.  The members of this mission had come a long way in a short time and had made great accomplishments.  Equal status meant responsibilities and the members of New Hope Person Missionary Baptist Church assumed the responsibilities eagerly.  The Deacon Board assumed the leadership responsibilities:  Major Royster, Rufus Cameron, George Leathers, John D Leathers, Jeff Pettiford, Carl Hampton, Ike Carrington, and Jessie Cameron.  The Pioneer group knew that a great work was to be done, and all realized the necessity for divine help and guidance.  The Sisters Lelia Leathers, Savannah Cameron, Lillie Ann Leathers and Dora Cameron, accepting the charge given them, put their hands to work.  Officers were established and filled by these pioneering men and women to carry out the mission of the church.  Sister Lilia Leathers was the first president of the Home Mission Church Circle, which was organized in 1907 by Sister Satterfield.

The second building was a public school house known as Cameron Quarters School.  In 1922, visible changes occurred when land was purchased from Sister Emma Cameron to build a new church. The new church was constructed on Tom Oakley Road, which is its present location.  The church was remodled in 1956 and a addition added in 2001, with a new fellowship hall on the lower level, Pastor’s Study, classrooms, offices and additional seating to the upper level.

New Hope Missionary Baptist Church has had many ministers, who have received the call to serve and these men of God include the following:  Rev. Ulyesses Chavis, Rev. Melvin Palmer, Rev. Ted Pool and Rev. Wilbert L. Richardson. 
Rev. Richardson has led the congregation to great heights during his ministry.  Under his leadership the church has experienced periods of steady growth. Several Associate Ministers have come under his leadership to include the following: Bishop Lavern Rankins, the first female minister, Rev Linda Allen, Minister Gwendolyn Moor and Chaplain Wallace Allen.  Currently serving as Associate Ministers are:  Minister Dorothy Mangum and Minister Brenda-Hunt Moore.  Current members of the Board of Deacons are: Deacon Anthony Moore and Deacon Dwight Thorpe and an active Trustee Board consisting of male and female members.

We are blessed to begin a new phase of growth with the construction project of the new additions to the church.  Adding to the front of the church a foyer, new men and ladies restrooms, additional seating and an audio and video room are all under the leadership of Pastor Richardson.

The New Hope Person Missionary Baptist Church has several talented musicians and signer in our congregation that includes: The Family Gospel Singers for over 45 years and the Thorpe Family that has recorded CDs and a national video.  National recording artist Damon Little, Nu Beginning of Baltimore, Maryland and the Brower Brothers of Newark, New Jersey have been among the visitors to New Hope. 

Church services begin with Sunday School held every Sunday at 10:00 a.m. and Worship Service at 11:00 a.m. with the exception of 5th Sundays.  Bible Study is held on Wednesday night at 7:000 p.m. under the divine teaching of Pastor Richardson.  Rev. Rosa Centry was the former teacher, the Mother of Pastor Richardson of First Calvary Baptist Church, Durham, NC.  We were blessed to have a mighty woman of God to teach His Word.  Due to declining health, Mother Centry is no longer teaching the class.  We pray for her strength in the Lord.  Please join us!  




New Red Mountain Baptist Church
Pastor, Rev. Dr. Percy High
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Established 1874 

Like the early Christians, the founders of The New Red Mountain Missionary Baptist Church, formally Red Mountain Baptist Church, had a strong conviction to do God’s will.  As a result of our ancestors commitment to doing God’s work, came the birth of our church.  It was in 1874 that God gave the vision to the Reverend John Mitchell.

The first parishioners worshipped on the bank of Flat River which is located approximately one-fourth mile east of the church.  The first structured church was a log cabin.  It was located on the opposite side of the New Red Mountain Missionary Baptist Church.  According to oral history, when the former parishioners could not substantiate a deed for the property, that site became invalidated when the white congregation wanted to build their church at that location.  The forerunners of the church did not become discouraged by that experience.  Instead, they prevailed and bought the property where the church is presently located.

The succession of ministers after Reverend Mitchell, the first pastor, to the 1980s to serve Red Mountain Baptist Church included: Reverends Hunt, Charles Day, John Day, Jerome Cozart, Hayward Lyons, Monroe Ramey, Eli Thomas, W.D. Smith, H.V. Eaton, J.T. Ramseur, Hill, A.S. Croom, L.W. Reid, J.S. Stewart, Arthur Parker, Floyd Eaton, Nealie Harvey and Cureton Johnson.

In 1982, the new construction of Red Mountain Baptist Church was completed and then renamed The New Red Mountain Missionary Baptist Church.  Ten years later the mortgage for The New Red Mountain Missionary Baptist Church was symbolically burned and a new cornerstone laid.

The succession of ministers of The New Red Mountain Missionary Baptist Church after Rev. Cureton Johnson included: Reverends Cureton Johnson, Alton Pollard, Clifton Bullock (interim), Archie Logan, Everette Johnson, Sr. (interim), Dr. Maurice Wallace, Lucy Watson (interim), and George Harris.

In August 2009, Reverend Dr. Percy High accepted the pastorate of the New Red Mountain Missionary Baptist Church. Because of God’s “Amazing Grace” and Reverend High’s spiritual guidance, as of August 2014, we have received the following blessed accomplishments:
· Twenty-nine additional members
· Paved parking lot
· Installation of ceiling fans
· Installation of new and renovation of existing bathrooms
· Expansion of choir loft with handicapped accessibility
· Installation of two elevators

The current church leadership team under the direction and guidance of Pastor Percy High includes: Rev. Joyce Daye Clayton, Assistant Pastor; Associate Ministers Rev. Everette Johnson, Sr. and Minister Everette Johnson, Jr. The current Chair of the Board of Deacons is Minister Everette Johnson, Jr., the Chair of the Trustee Board is Trustee Edgar Johnson, and the Chair of the Board of Deaconess is Deaconess Margo Bullock Harris. 

As it was with its origin in 1874, the church has been sustained through God’s grace and mercy.  Praises are given to God for all of the blessings he has bestowed upon the New Red Mountain Missionary Baptist Church since its humble beginning at the side of a river bank.




New St. James Missionary Baptist Church
Reverend Lloyd Oliver, Sr.
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The History of New Saint James Baptist Church Person County, North Carolina By Mrs. Mary“Mollie” Lyons as told to Mrs. Wilma Clayton Bryant The present New Saint James Baptist Church has its beginning just after the war for freedom. The spot where the log hut stood is now only a crumbling mound of rocks at Reuben Springs, then a part of the late Woodson Lyons estate, but now a part of the Monroe Clayton Sr. estate. A few happy people with their new-found freedom and anxious to sing praises to God borrowed some members from the Mother Church of the East Cedar Grove Association, and organized New St. James Baptist Church. Some of those members have descendants who are now members of the Church.

Some of the members were Mr. Alex Lyons, Mrs. Betty Lyons, Mrs. Julianne Bass and Mrs. Dollie Bullock. Two of the members from Cedar Grove who helped were Mrs. Hettie Noell and Mr. Bob Yancey. In about three years, Mr. Henry Webb, a generous Negro land –owner gave a good log building to be used as a church. The site is about three miles south east of the present site. This building was also used for a school. One of the students was the late Mrs. Charlotte Webb who later became an outstanding educator of the county.

During a school program of 1886, the school-church burned along with a new building under construction. The late Rev. Cozart was delivering the Christmas Address at this program. The membership decided to move to a new location for rebuilding in the spring of 1887 on Pixley Pritchard Road, Timberlake, North Carolina. The minister at the time of the rebuilding was the late Rev. John Day and Mr. Brud Webb was Church Clerk. Some of the early members were Mrs. Hettie Noell, Mrs. Rosetta Sniped, Mr. Richard Lyons, Mr. Bob Coleman, Mr. Monroe Snipe, and Mrs. Flonnie Clayton. The Deacons were Mr. Henry Lyons, Mr. Monroe Clayton Sr., Mr. Heywood Lyons, Mr. Richard Webb, Mr. Doc Lawson, Mr. Neil Lyons, and Mr. Sonnie Bullock. 

New St. James’ pastors in order of service have been, Rev. John Day, Rev. John Sanford, Rev. David Jones, Rev. Walter Blackwell, Rev. John Day (again), Rev. Wiggius Street, Rev. Yorbonigh Williams, Rev. P.E. Green, Rev. R. Puryear, Rev. Alex Peace and Rev. A.A. Chavis. All are deceased. Rev. James Ray, Rev Reginald Dalton now (deceased), Rev. John Cladwell, Rev. G.C. Ragland, Rev. Michael Nelson, Rev. George L. Bullock, and Rev. Peter L. Baker, 2008-Present Rev. Lloyd Oliver Jr.


New Light Baptist Church
Pastor, Rev. Gaddies Barnes
15408 New Light Church Road, Wake Forest, NC 27587
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Established 1907

New Light Baptist Church located at 15408 New Light State Road was constructed 1907 in Wake County.  The founders of the church were the late William Henry Mangum and his son-in-law Sanford Louis Holding, Sr.  Rev. Powell was the first known Pastor and Rev. Norman Trice was the second Pastor.
Bro. Jewel Garrett installed the first electric light.

For many years; the church stood in need of repairs.  Many of its' member could not come to church because of poor transportation and some members lived out of state.  Some rode wagons and others walked to church.  Some even stayed with relatives.  In the early 1970's, under the leadership of Rev. Ralph Holloway; a new roof was put on and a new piano was purchased.

In 1978, Rev. Gaddies Barnes became the new pastor and is our current Pastor today.  Under his leadership; the church has progressed the most which includes the improvement of the basement to used as a temporary dining hall, two classrooms, the Pastor's Study, the aluminum siding, a new central air control system, new church pews, two inside bathrooms, water fountain, handicap ramp, new carpet throughout the church, a more modern roof and a paved parking lot.

The Building Fund money raised for the church is set aside to provide funding for different projects to promote the progress of the church.  Each auxiliary of the church sponsors programs to help raise money for the continued growth of the church.



Oak Grove Baptist Church
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Established 1865 

The year is 1865.  Slavery has just ended….1865 is a historical date for Black Americans because it marks the end of the Civil War, but for a small community that came to be known as Oak Grove it was the end of a devastating war and the beginning of a religious journey.  Oak Grove Baptist Church was started during that year and from 1865-1879 friends, family and others came together to worship, pray, and praise.  Thanks be to God for the Curtis family who either sold, rented or gave the Oak Grove congregation its first church site across the road from the present church.  For 14 years, worship services were held in a makeshift structure. In 1879, Samuel and Rebecca Hobgood sold the present site of the church to Trustee Ambrose and James

Thus was the beginning of Oak Grove on this site.  Family and friends came to Oak Grove.  The church was always packed on 3rd Sunday.  A trademark of this church’s history has been an overwhelming church attendance.   We have a history of unbroken congregational fellowship.   WE HAVE STAYED TOGETHER.
1879-1900 — Rev. Dr. Howard is our first known pastor.  Under his leadership our first church on the 
Hobgood land was built. In the 1st 3 decades of the 1900’s there were only 4 pastors, and Rev. J. T. Peace’s tenure was the longest.  His was the first Peace to be born free and his first sermon was” Branches of a Tree.”  It was believed that he served for approximately 12 years.  1900-1930 pastors included Rev. Bell, Rev. Haywood Lyons, Rev. J. T. Peace and Rev. Willie Smith.

1930-1940 - Rev. Prophas Green came to us in the early 30’s.  He organized our first usher board.  He was a sporty –sharp dresser.  

Rev. S. B. Clanton or Clements served us in the mid 30’s to 1940-41?  Rev. Clanton was always ready to preach on 3rd Sunday.  He was a fiery preacher and people came from surrounding communities to hear him.  Mr. Robert Skipwith built the covered porch onto the church.  Rev. Clanton not only was a preaching man he was a singing man also.  Two of his favorite songs were, The Storm is Passing Over and When I Wake Up In Glory.

In 1942 Rev. James Burchette was installed as our pastor.  He was a strict disciplinarian...He did not allow walking during service.  Our first choir...the Senior Choir was organized under his leadership.  The first 
wedding held in the church was directed by him (Dr. Shirley and Charles Bullock).  The Junior choir organized under his leadership not by age but because they were subordinate to the Senior Choir.  His favorite saying was...“So was the way of a child of God”

1965—1971 -- Rev. R. E. Page is remembered because he is the pastor who kindled the fire for us to recall our history.  Rev. Page started the first anniversary celebration.  A Tot’s choir was organized and later became the youth choir...by age.  The dream of a new church building began with Rev. Page. It was said that Rev. Page favorite phrase was “If you make a joke, make it have a meaning.”

1971-1999  —  Rev. Mack Timberlake Sr. inaugurated worship service twice a month, 1st and 3rd Sundays, and encouraged the facilitating of other church ministries  -  Senior Choir, Gospel Choir, Adult Choir, Junior Choir, Young Adult Department and Male Chorus.  Under his leadership Oak Grove paid for church and burned deed.

1999-2001 - With praying and wisdom the church family interviewed and had many pastors to bring the word to us….

Rev. Ray A. Allsberry did his initial sermon on August 20, 2000.  Election was held on January 20, 2001 and was elected as pastor by ballot vote.  Installation service was held on July 22, 2001.  Since installation he has ordained new deacons and trustees, the implementation of Christian Education Advisory Committee, Church By-Laws written and accepted, and incorporated church, to name a few.  Since July of 2001 he has given the right hand of fellowship and baptized numerous members.


Oak Grove Missionary Baptist Church has been an avid member of the East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist Association since its inception, the Woman's Auxiliary of the East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist 
Association supports the General Baptist State Convention of North Carolina, the Woman’s Baptist Home & Foreign Missionary convention of NC, the Granville County Missionary Union, the American Red Cross, Cancer Relay and the Central Children’s Orphanage.


Oak Grove Missionary Baptist Church is proud to currently have five ministers from our church: Reverend Joel Norwood, Associate Pastor, Oak Grove Baptist Church; Rev. George Bullock, Pastor of Mountain Spring Baptist Church, Oxford, NC; Pastor Lennis Thorpe, Pastor of Shocco Chapel Missionary Baptist Church, Warrenton, NC and Odell Missionary Baptist Church, Warren County, North Carolina; Minister Peggie Hunt Cooper, Associate Minister of Oak Grove Missionary Baptist Church, and Minister Persaline Hunt Satterwhite, Associate Minister of Oak Grove Missionary Baptist Church.


Olive Grove Baptist Church
Reverend Dr. Mack T. Timberlake, Sr. Pastor
5014 Old Highway #75, Oxford, NC 27565
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Established October 10, 1865


Throughout history God has blessed His Church.  In October of 1865, God through the work of Rev. L. C. Ragland, a carpetbagger from the North, gathered Christians at Olive Grove Missionary Baptist Church with five borrowed members from another church to establish this great Church.  We join in thanks to our God for these called workers God provided to us for the edification of this Church.  To God be the Glory!



Orange Grove Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Dr. Herbert L. Dickerson
505 East End Avenue, Durham, NC 27707
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Established 1880


The correct date that Orange Grove Baptist Church was first organized has not been determined. However, in the approximate year of 1882, a Subscription School was located in the vicinity of the Old Raleigh Road, now known as Angier Avenue. The purpose of this school was to get the people of the community interested in organizing a Sunday School Class, which was needed in the community. The leader of this school was Mr. Carter (first name unknown). The names of the other faithful members are not known, but their interest in the welfare of the community should linger in our minds forever.

In the approximate year of 1888, Mr. Hobb Norwood helped organize a Sunday School Class in the Subscription School was no longer in use. This class was located near the Barbee Place on the Ellis Road in a log cabin. Some of the members of the now Trinity Methodist Church of Durham gave their aid and assistance in the Sunday School Class with the suggestion that our future church be named the Orange Grove Baptist Church. In the years before the Civil War, Trinity Methodist had been named the Orange Grove Methodist Church, being located in the part of the East Durham community also called Orange Grove. If you visit the present Trinity Methodist Church, located on Church Street, you will find a display case that holds a rock for the foundation of their first church, along with a card that reads:

Orange Grove Methodist Church organized in a schoolhouse in 1830 by 30 members. It was located east of Durham near the site of the Virginia-Carolina Chemical Plant. 

In the centennial history of Trinity Methodist Church it was noted that in October 1888 the Rev., Sam P. Jones, well- known Georgia evangelist, visited Durham and conducted revival services lasting for several weeks in the Parish Warehouse. These services were attended by large numbers of people of all churches. 

A return engagement was filled during the following year, and as a result of these two meetings, many persons were added to the various churches of the city. This revival was most likely the major reason why Orange Grove Baptist Church was begun. As the Sunday School Class grew, the members saw the need of a church and as a result Mr. Rheuben Barbee had enough lumber to build a one-room structure. The first Pastor of this church was the Reverend Bennie Adkins, uncle of Annie Allen, the oldest member of Orange Grove. The Reverend Thompson also pastored along with Reverend Adkins. Still fighting for the Lord and progressing in membership, the church was later moved to East Pettigrew Street, along the Durham and Southern Railway across from the V. C. Fertilizer Plant. The pastors were as follows: Reverend John Stanford, Reverend Elleby, Reverend S. T. Thomas, Reverend Blake, Reverend Walter Green, Reverend Walker, Reverend J.C. Lyons, Reverend James Smith, Reverend Monroe, Reverend Sam Allen, and Reverend Lassiter.

In the year 1934, under the leadership of Reverend Lassiter and the Deacons: Jacob Alston, Robert Lyons, Dempsey Jenkins, Clarence Manson, Ed Lyons, Joseph Page, and Elton C. Hayes, the church saw the need for moving to a better location. Mr. Hayes negotiated the loan and the present site on East End Avenue was purchased. The spring of 1935 saw a determined people begin to take down the old church building, salvaging all reusable materials to be used in the proposed new structure. This church, which had been established in the East Cedar Grove Association in 1911, now began again, by building a brush arbor on the new lot, for the purpose of having a meeting place, until the new church building could be erected. A men's club composed of Jim Jones, Sam Jefferson, Fred Lee, Wallace Horton, and Emerson Flake, helped to finance the initial work on the site. Robert and Edward Lyons did the brick work and laid the steps. The men's club bought the brick and cement for the steps and the walk. Mr. Ollie Edwards was the contractor. The members of the church and community joined in the work giving both their financial support and labor, sometimes working at night with the ladies preparing food and serving the men. Thank God for blessing us with people such as these. The church progressed to the point that we could move in and have worship before the weather became too cold. We thank God for people such as Eli Brown, Sr., Deacon John Bridges and Nathan Tate for their support of this project.

In 1954, under the teaching and guidance of the Reverend W.C. Manson, Deacon, and Trustee Boards, the church began to make plans to remodel and rebuild, to meet the pressing enlargement and modernization needs of the church. The church realizing that it would be a long and sometimes tedious process began by going down on bended knees in prayer, for the continuance of the work at hand. During the Homecoming of that year, the men were asked to contribute and additional $10.00 and the women $5.00 in order to put more emphasis on enlarging the Building Fund. Once the church began to realize the purpose of the extra drive, we began to move forward. In the following year (1955) the church was able to show some improvement. One of the things the church did was purchase oil-fired, electrically controlled furnace, replacing eh coal furnace. Secondly, and most importantly, was the growing interest from the membership. The Homecoming and Building Fund began to grow.




Pettiford Grove Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Alvin B. Downing, Sr.
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Established 1887
The definite age of Pettiford Grove Baptist Church is unknown to us today, but as far back as the records were searched, the church is approximately 127 years old as of this year. This church is historically significant to many of our current members mainly because of our family relationship to the early founders of the church.  Pettiford Grove is currently an active member of the East Cedar Grove Association. The mission of this church is to exalt God through our Lord Jesus Christ, loving fellowship,  God-centered worship, fervent prayer and applying our biblical instructions daily to the edification of Him.
Pettiford Grove got its name from the community known earlier by the name of Pettiford Town. It began as a very small school. A group of people, all names are not known, got together at the Pettiford Grove School and began having worship service. The school was then a one-room log cabin structure across the street from the present structure at 3579 Cannady Mill Road, Kittrell, N.C. 27544. After a short while the school no longer held classes at that site and the people decided that they would organize a church. Since the school that had occupied that site was named Pettiford School, and the community was known to many as Pettiford Town, it was decided that the appropriate name should be Pettiford Grove Baptist Church. That’s the history behind the naming of the church.
Some of the early members to confess Christ at this church were: Bros. Robert Pettiford, Dorsey Pettiford, Ollie Scott, and Ike Smith. After having worship service in the log structure for several years, the members decided that they would build a larger church. The structure was laid out to be 60’x40’. Unfortunately a storm came and destroyed the structure before the Brothers of the church and the church community could get it completed.
About twenty years later the last old church structure was erected. Bro. Louis Pettiford gave a 10-acre lot directly across the street from this present structure to build the church.  Mr. Arthur Brandon, Mr. John Cooley and Mrs. Mary Foster donated one-and one-half acres of land also.(Unfortunately, let the records reflect, that the church lost this donated 10 -acres of land).
The first known pastor of Pettiford Grove Baptist Church is believed to have been Rev. Jenkins.   Rev. Joe Kingsbury was the first Pastor many of the present members can remember. He can be remembered for singing his version of “Amazing Grace” and providing worship service here one Sunday per month. Our revival service was held twice a day for one week during the month of August or September. Our baptizing was held in the Cannady Mill River which is located approximately 1 mile from this church. Homecoming Service was always enjoyed by everyone with the highlight of the service being lunch which was served on picnic tables on the outside lawn. There were many baskets / boxes filled with all kinds of good home cooked food. Children’s Day was another big day and especially for the children of the church. The recitations were said by almost every child of the church.
Recreation back in those days was family events. Families then would meet after worship or Sunday School at one of the families’ home. When two or three families met, there were always enough players for a softball game, a football game, a game of marbles, or just teams to play hopscotch. Our church annual picnic was highlighted with a daylong trip to Bug’s Island- a recreational area in Vance County.
Pettiford Grove Baptist Church (this new sanctuary) was built almost solely by many of our very own members and help from our friends. Those members are Deacons Robert Burwell, Robert Lee Owens , Justice Faulcon, Wenford Braswell and James Alford Owens and Trustee Ferber Herndon. This church was completed in 1986 and it was built because of their untiring efforts and encouragement. On Sunday April 27,1986 our Dedication Service was held here to climax the end of services at the old church and to start our fellowship in the new church.  The written church history documented up to the year of 2002 is published for the first time ever in a book that was released the fall of 2002 and can be seen at the Richard H. Thornton Library in Oxford. 
We believe that with God’s help we can continue to see progress and continue striving to please our Lord Jesus Christ.
Submitted by: Pastor: Rev. Alvin B. Downing, Sr.  , Mary Owens-Henderson, Financial Secretary /Trustee


Pine Grove Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Dr. McElroy
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Established 1870

In 1870, five years after slavery was abolished, a group of persons meeting each Wednesday night for prayer service, in a brush harbor, “across the creek”, near the old Winston School House at Hester, were led by the Holy Spirit to organize a church.These persons included Reverend John Mitchell, the first pastor; Rev. Junius Taylor and his wife Eliza; his sister, Lucy Taylor Coley and her husband Joe Coley; and Talton Lawrence and his wife Priscilla.  These are our founders.  The known list of charter members included  Jacob Winston and his wife; Ben Lyons and his wife Littie;  Burrell Jones and his wife Elmira;  Wess Allen and his wife Mary;  Reuben Bullock, Sr. and his wife Dicey; Tony Hicks and his wife Bell;  Phed Jones and his wife Sarah; and Calvin Jiles and his wife Julia.  Between 1870 and 1932, eleven pastors served.  

The brush harbor was later replaced with a log building.  For unknown reasons, this brush harbor group moved to the present site on highway #56, Creedmoor.  Reverend Junius Taylor negotiated the purchasing of the land.  A simple frame building was constructed.  In 1932, Reverend George Washington Thomas began his Pastorate.  He served as pastor from 1932-1954 (22 years).  Under his leadership the church thrived.  The first Vacation Bible School was held, worship bulletins were provided for Sunday service, the first organ was purchased and worship services was held on the second and fourth Sunday of the month.  A youth minister was appointed by Rev. Thomas for the youth church.

Reverend Thomas encouraged and began “God’s Acre Plan” for the building fund.  Farmers planted and dedicated an acre of tobacco and gave the total profit to the church.  Others gave a special percentage of other products.  In 1950, the simple frame building was replaced with a brick structure that included classrooms and a basement that included an indoor baptismal pool that was later finished with help from the members.  Shortly after moving into the new structure, which was heavily mortgaged, the church family was saddened by the death of Reverend Thomas.  

1955 – Reverend Louis Wade began his Pastorate.  During his first year as pastor the mortgage was burned.  Progress continued under his leadership with the purchase of pews, pulpit furniture and the purchase of a Hammond organ.  Indoor toilet facilities were installed and the four church districts were organized.  

In 1964 the first brick structure, and most of its contents, was destroyed by fire.
Under the leadership of Reverend Barnes, the present brick building was constructed in 1965.  Under the leadership of Reverend C.R. Stone (1966-1976), all debts were paid off, the membership increased, worship services were extended to four Sundays,   seven acres of additional land was purchased and a Tiny Tots Choir was organized. 

1977-1995 During the next decade, the church experienced several changes in leadership beginning with Reverend Joseph Dempsey.  A church directory was printed.    1977-83, Rev. Aloysius High – The church drafted and approved a Constitution and Sunday morning children’s hour.  1984-86, Rev. James W. Swindell. 

A scholarship fund established.  1987-93, Rev. Norris Trice – During Rev. Trice’s tenure, bible study was revitalized and Christian Education was emphasized.  Guide-
lines for the Pine Grove Memorial Gardens (cemetery) were approved.  Fifth Sunday became Young Adult Sunday and this department gave birth to a Young Adult Community Choir “The Voices in Praise Choir” which calls Pine Grove home each 3rd Sunday.  Rev. Trice’s Pastorate ended in 1993 and Rev. Bernard Holliday was called as interim.  During this period of leadership, a church directory was published and waterproofing of the basement was completed.

1996 – Present – Pastor Larry L. McElroy, Sr.   
Pastor McElroy began his pastorate in February, 1996.  He came with a mission of saving souls and spreading God’s word.  Under his leadership, vision and zeal to do the work of the Lord, he initiated programs and outreach ministries designed to enhance and enrich the spiritual and educational growth of our church and community.

For the first time in Pine Grove History, three female deacons were ordained in September, 2003:  Deacon Gloria Green, Deacon Charyle Pearson, and Deacon Bernardette Davis.  In February, 2004, Brother Tony Boss was ordained as a minister. Our Outreach Ministry is now responsible for the Food Pantry and Clothes Closet. Also this year was the first time Homecoming and Church Anniversary has been held
at the same time (2nd Sunday in November).  Cosmetic updates to the entire church are continually being made inside and outside.  The Butner side of the parking lot was also paved.

For the first time, Pine Grove has Associate Ministers:  Minister Annie Cozart (now deceased); being the first female minister, Rev. Tony Boss, Rev. Stanley Cooper. Minister Bernardette Davis, Minister Peter Wilson, and Reverend Meriam Hatchett Joined Pine Grove in October, 2013, she is an associate minister.  

From humble beginnings Pine Grove has been blessed.  During our early years, members of Pine Grove helped to organize two daughter churches: Mount Vernon Baptist Church (1872), Rev J. Eric Morgan is the Pastor and Creedmoor First Baptist Church (Now Christian Faith Center) Reverend Brenda Timberlake is pastor.  Pine Grove also assisted in chartering the East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist Association and its auxiliaries:  the General Sunday School Convention, the Ministers and Deacons Union, The Sisters Union and the Women’s Auxiliary.  The first District Sunday school Convention was also organized at Pine Grove.
Rock Spring Baptist Church
Immediate Past Pastor, Rev. Dr. Samuel M. Corbett
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Established 1875

Rock Spring is a community of believers serving God through Jesus Christ and guided by the Holy Spirit.  The church was organized in approximately 1875.  Information given from Brassfield Baptist Church stated that the church was built for both black and white races.  The church was built with tow galleries, one for the blacks and one for the whites.  After the Civil War was over, God gave our fore parents wisdom, knowledge, insight, and determination to step out on faith and seek grounds for establishing their own place to worship.  Some of the great soldiers that decided to step out on faith and organize a church for their won race were:  Robert and Mincie Thorpe, Toney and Bell Hicks, Jim and Hannah Byrd, Zack and Mary Mangum, Willis and Harriet Rogers, Alford and Mattie Bullock, Tobert and Lena B. Allen, Nelson and Ella Winston, Iverson and Luna Landis and Mr. and Mrs. Wiley Landis. For the first service, it is believed a bush harbor was used.  In the area of the church, there were huge rocks and a spring nearby.  This is how the church got the name “Rock Spring.” 

Reverend Lewis Holding was the first called pastor.  In time, Reverend Jerome Cozart was called to pastor and under his leadership a log building was erected on the present property.  In 1895, Reverend Haywood Lyons was called to serve in the log building.  Several other ministers who served as pastor during those times were:  Reverend Christmas, Reverend Eli Thomas, and Reverend Wortham.  During the 1900s a frame church was built and was later struck b lightning.  In 1924, Reverend J. J. Price served as pastor.  During the 1930s Reverend L.J. Alexander served for a few years, after which Reverend A. Reid served until his death on February 23, 1936.  In 1936, Rev W. L. Wilson served a few years, then rev. L. J. Alexander was called back to pastor in 1939.  He served until his death in October 1950.  In 1950, Rev L. M. Gooch was called to pastor.  With the membership still increasing, Rev. Gooch consented to pastor until our church could get another pastor.  He was a full time pastor for St. John’s Missionary Baptist Church and had one Sunday at Markham Chapel and one Sunday at Vernon Hill Baptist Church.  Rev. L. M. Gooch and members decided to vote Rev. Ewell Winston as an associate minister and he served until his death.  Rev. Gooch was loved by all and stayed until his death in April of 1980.

A tragedy occurred during the Sunday School hour in 1962.  The church was destroyed by fire.  Rock Spring United Church of Christ made us welcomed and opened their doors while we were out of our church.  In 1963, a new edifice was built.  The first Sunday in July the Lord blessed us to return to our sanctuary which is now our fellowship hall.  On the week of September 3 through October 4, 1963, services were held dedicating the sanctuary. 
From 1981 to 1986, Reverend J.N. Brown and Reverend Lorenzo lynch served as pastors.  In April 1987, Reverend Paul Anderson assumed the pastorate at Rock Spring for five years.  Under his leadership, our first female trustees were assigned.  We also went from 1st and 3rd Sunday morning and evening service to 1st, 2nd and 4th Sunday services.  In 1992 to 1993, Reverend Williams and Reverend Lee served as Interim pastors. 

Rev Samuel M. Corbett was called to pastor in March of 1993.  Sadly we lost Reverend Corbett to death in January 2014.  However, under his leadership we were blessed to have service every Sunday and witnessed the ground breaking of our new sanctuary in 2001.  We thank God for our new sanctuary.  Our first service was held on June 22, 2002 and our dedication was held on October 4th - 6th, 2002.  We look to the future with high hopes and great plans for the generations to come.  We hope and pray that with God’s guidance we will continue to grow in the things of God, to prosper and be in good health in years to come. 

We are the little church with a big heart, where everybody is somebody and Jesus Christ is Lord.


Shady Hill Baptist Church
Rev. Dr. James Richmond, Sr. 
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Established 1867

Shady Hill Missionary Baptist Church began as an idea in the minds of a small group of farmers, after the Civil War in late 1867.  This church was to be located in the Pick Siding community, now known as the Somerset Community.  The Pick Siding Community was named after a sawmill owner.  Mr. Louis Coley, a former “Negro slave”, who brought and owned a large farm, donated an acre of land to the endeavor.  Mr. John Mangum and Mr. Jack Tapp were other leaders of the group.

The Church was first called, “Coley Chapel” and located near the Oxford highway on the Louis Coley Plantation.  With no money or building, a brush arbor was erected as the first church.  Benches were made from slabs from Mr. Picks Sawmill, for weats.  The first pastor was Reverend Haywood Wilson, of Denniston, Virginia.  The 30 or 40 members were former slaves who had attended white churches, but had strong Christian beliefs, and a desire for their own place to worship.  The first official meeting was held in the Spring of 1868.  As the weather turned cooler, the congregation began to think of a more substantial building.

After relocating to the present location, Reverend Wilson and members of the Deacon board, who also served as Trustees decided to change the name of the church to Shady Hill Baptist Church.  To enclose the arbor, slabs were bought from the mill and nailed, overlapping each other, to the sides, to form the walls.  Stones daubed with clay were used to build two large fireplaces at opposite corners - one for the women and the other for the men.  A pulpit large enough to accommodate two or three visiting preachers was erected.  There was no music to accompany the early singers, but an organ was placed in the church around the turn of the century.

Baptizing of the first membership was held during July or August at various places where the water was flowing, usually at Flat River, the Louis Daniel Creek, the Jim Jones Creek, or the Louis Peace Creek.  The tradition was established based on the belief that the running water would wash away the sins of a member better than still water.  The first baptismal pool was built on the church grounds in 1940.

The prospective members’ moral were closely examined by the pastor and congregation, and they were extolled to show in good faith that they, the members, truly repented of their sins before they were accepted into the fellowship of the church.  The pastor encouraged them to walk in the newness of life.

Mr. John and Mrs. Minnie Cates deeded a half acre of land to the church in 1952, and the congregation bought more land, and built a newer church in 1955, the third building to be erected by the congregation.
The following ministers have served as pastor: Reverend Haywood Wilson, Denniston, VA; Reverend Nelson Johnson, Reverend Samuael Johnson, Boydton, VA; Dr. Simon S. Wilson, Wilmington, NC; Dr. Harvey Johnson, Boydton, VA; in 1900, Dr. A. R. Patillo, Oxford, NC; 1905, Dr. J. A. Turner of South Carolina; 1907, Dr. A. B. Vincent, Raleigh, NC; 1909, Dr. A. P. Wyche, Henderson, NC; 1911, Reverend J. T. Peace, Oxford, NC; 1918, Reverend J. M. Taylor, Creedmoor, NC; 1922, Reverend H. D, Eaton, Creedmoor, NC; 1937, Reverend C. R. Faison, Raleigh, NC; 1940, Dr. L. J. Alexander, Wise, NC; 1944. Dr. J. M. Jackson (Shaw University), Raleigh, NC; 1948,  Reverend L. J. Shipman (Shaw University), Raleigh, NC; 1950, Reverend S. F. Dailey (Shaw University), Raleigh, NC; 1955, Reverend H. Albert Smith, Boston, MA; 1976, Dr. Herbert O. Edwards, Sr. (Duke University and Morgan State University), Durham, NC; 1987, Dr. Ronald L. Swain, Sr. (Shaw University), Raleigh, NC; and 1988 to present, Dr. James A. Richmond, Sr. (NC State University and Shaw University), Durham, NC. Under the leadership of Reverend H. Albert Smith and Dr. Herbert O. Edwards, Sr., extensive renovation was done to the edifice.

During Homecoming in 1998, notice was given that a “Groundbreaking Ceremony” was planned for construction of a new edifice, other major renovations, and landscaping.  Under the pastorate and leadership of Dr. James A. Richmond, Sr., more land was purchased, and a new edifice was completed in February 2001, with the previous edifice being converted into a fellowship hall.  Membership of the Shady Hill Baptist Church is approximately 300. The congregation purchased a house and land in front of the church between 2010 and 2013.
 
 


Siloam Baptist Church
Pastor, Rev. Willie Johnson
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Established 1880s


Siloam Baptist Church, located in Rougemont, North Carolina began in the 1800s with first meetings in bush arbors.  Land was donated by Phennie (Thennie) Hayes and the current church sits on that site.  The current pastor is the Rev. Wayne Johnson who served as an Associate Minister at First Baptist Church in Roxboro, North Carolina prior to being called to pastor at Siloam.



St. John’s Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Robert Daniels
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Established 1910


In the year 1909 Walltown was a very small community with one road- Wall street, plenty of woods and a few scattered families.  St. Joseph A.M.E. Zion Church established a small Methodist church in this area for the convenience of its member in the Walltown, Hickstown and Broonstown communities, but a need was felt for a Baptist church in the area.  

Concerned residents among who were Mr. Nick Bass, Mr. Pap Yancy and Rev. J. R. Brandon began a Sunday school which was a great success and after giving the matter some thought, they began to think about building a church in Wall town.  The group had house to house prayer meetings with the eventual establishment of a church as their prime objective.  Mr. Yancy and Rev. Barndon were so inspired that they decided to enlist the help of Rev. W. H. Stanfield who had established West Durham Church.  A revival was held and the church was organized following the revival.  The first baptism was held in a branch off what is now called Lancaster Street.

In 1910 Rev J. R. Brandon was inspired, along with the help of Brother Pap Yancy, Brother Nick Bass, Rev. W. R. Stanfield and a small group of area residents, to build a Baptist Church in the small community of Walltown.  Plans were laid for the organization of the Baptist church in Walltown.  Later that year, a store building on the corner of Wall (now Onslow) and B (now Green) Streets was rented and named Wall Street Baptist Church.  Rev. J. R. Brandon served as the first pastor. 

From the inception through the next decades, the church experienced some ups and downs.  The downs were the Great Depression era which created financial hardships on families in our church and community.  During the Depression, when the church was experiencing financial hardships, Sister Mary Hopkins decided to share her means with the church by making the interest payments on the church to ward off foreclosure. 

As the church began to recover there was tremendous spiritual growth which created a need for several ministries.  The church was remolded to accommodate the increase in membership and the church’s name was changed to Olivet Baptist Church and later to St. John’s Baptist Church.
During the early 1940s, the church was without a pastor and a committee was formed to begin the search for a new pastor.  Rev. Lerman M. Gooch answered the call as our pastor in October, 1943. 

The rebuilding of the church created great joy, tremendous faith and a greater closeness to God, as we dedicated and entered our new facility on May 9, 1958.

Saint Jon’s was very active in the Civil Rights movement, to the extent that four of its members were the first students to attend predominately white school.  Those students were chosen in terms of their academic and leadership abilities and included the following:  Anita Lorine Brame (Hill) and Lucy Jones (Flagler) attended all-white Brogden Junior High School and Claudette Carolyn Bram (Bridgeford) and Larry Scurlock attended all-white Durham High School.

Rev. Gooch served as pastor for 36 years before God called him home on March 31, 1980. 

During the 1980s the church continued to grow and new ministries were added.  Our current pastor, Rev. Robert L. Daniels was installed on July 7, 1985.  With his teaching and guidance, a greater awareness seemed to fill St. John’s. 

In 2002 the church received a permit from the city of Durham to construct an educational building.  On June 22, 2003 the church broke ground for the new wing and construction began on October 13, 2003.  Dedication service for the Education Building was held on October 17, 2004. St. John’s Centenial Celebration began in January and climaxed in October, 2010 with a dynamic Revival and Homecoming worship experience. 

From 2011 to the present St. Johns’ Missionary Baptist Church under the leadership of Pastor Robert Daniels has been instrumental in establishing the following ministries/activities:
· Rein Hoy (Hispanic) Ministry
· Covenant Care Ministry
· Audio-Visual Ministry
· Leadership Workshops
· Noon Day Prayer and Bible Study
· Summer Camp
· Jobs for Life
· Computer Labs with donations of computers to students after completion
· Thanksgiving Fellowship Dinner for Senior and Disabled Citizens
· Hallelujah Festival and  
· Christmas Outreach Project



Synama Grove Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Lynwood Timberlake
3166 Tar River Road, Oxford, NC 25765
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Established 1861

The Synama Grove Missionary Baptist Church was organized in 1861 on the Atkins farm one and one –half miles from its present site.  Early recordings state that he Founding Fathers named the church after one of the seven churches of Asia Minor (Revelations 1:11)

The present church site was purchased in February, 1877 from John and Rebecca Chavis.  It was the same year that a frame building was constructed on the site.  This sanctuary served as a place of worship for more than four generations during which time only a few minor changes were made on the church.

As new members were being added and as the church survived through turbulent years of hard times, additional land was purchased by the church family in March 1908, July 1943 and March 1953.  
In June, 1961, the old wooden structure that served the Synama Grove worshippers for more than 85 years was completely demolished in order to construct a new sanctuary on the original site.  The Synama Grove Church family returned to their newly constructed sanctuary on September 2, 1961.  Dedication service for the new sanctuary was held on November 5, 1961.

Synama Grove Missionary Baptist Church began full-time worship on January 7, 1979. 

As the church family entered the new year, 1980, plans were put into place for the construction of a fellowship hall.  The construction of the fellowship hall was completed and a dedication service as held on November 30, 1980.  The new fellowship hall complete with a kitchen and restrooms was named in honor of the late Rev. L. M. Gooch. 

On August 5, 1987, the church membership voted to embark on an extensive renovation plan.  The parking lots and cemetery road were paved in July 1992. During 1996 a church van was presented to the church to aid members with a means of transportation to and from church.

Rev. Linwood L. Timberlake assumed the pastorate on February 3, 2002 as the 18th pastor of Synama Grove Missionary Baptist Church.  Under the leadership of Pastor Timberlake, the church membership has increased and the congregation has become more racially and culturally diverse.  For the first time in the rich history of the church, the finances reached $100,000.00.

On June 21, 2002 the church purchased three acres of land for an extension to the cemetery.  During 2004 the restrooms were renovated to make them handicapped accessible.  The basement was renovated and classrooms were2005.  

On January 8, 2006, Pastor Timberlake installed Trustee Brenda Poole as the Chairman of the Trustee Board.  This was the first time in the history of the church that a female had been selected to that position. The year 2011 marked the 150th Anniversary of the establishment of Synama Grove Missionary Baptist Church.  Many events were planned throughout the year starting with the Annual Founder’s Day.  The theme for the year was “Celebrating 150 year of Praise, Worship and Service.”  The year culminated with a banquet held at G. C. Hawley Middle School on Sunday, November 5th at 6:00 p.m.  The keynote speaker was Judge Quon Bridges. 

On February 8, 2012, Deacon Hubert L. Gooch, Jr. submitted a letter of resignation and resigned from the office of Deacon and Church Treasurer of Synama Grove Baptist Church.  On August 12, 2012, Ronald Atkins was installed back on the Trustee Board.  On January 13, 2013, Charlie was ordained as a Deacon during the Sunday Morning Worship Service.  

Today, as the church celebrates its 153rd Founders Day, we thank God for our Founding Fathers and Mothers.  It is our prayer that God will continue to bless the Synama Grove Missionary Baptist Church family as we endeavor to promote His cause. 

Submitted by Sister Lois M. Gooch, Church Historian



Tally Ho Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Moses Fletcher
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Established 1883


In 1883 several pioneering members of the Tally Ho community banded together and formed the only church for African American Christians in this small area.  It was named Tally Ho Missionary Baptist Church.  The name originated from the small settlement located to the east of our present day edifice.  This trading post, as history recorded it was located in the “fork” of two roads that converged as one.  One of these roads would eventually bare the name Tally Ho.  

Church records note several of the names of the early pioneers of Tally Ho Baptist Church and they include Cephus Washington, Richard Bullock, McGuffey May, Jerry Meadows, Jennie Bullock and Mariah Washington.  After living much of their lives in slavery, these early Christians were seeking opportunities for greater spiritual development and personal growth.  The directed the Tally Ho Baptists Church through the 1880s, 1890s and the turn of the 20th Century.  

Records show that the first land acquisition for the church was in the form of a “gift” from the Farabow Family.  Mr. Farabow was of Caucasian ancestry. The historical record also notes that the first school for African American students was built near Tally Ho Church.  

Tally Ho Missionary Baptist Church continued to prosper during the early 1900s, 1920s and he 1930s.  In 1909 under the leadership of Rev. D. D. Jones, one of the first cornerstones was installed at Tally Ho.  This stone remains today as a symbol of progress that our early ancestors erected to mark important growth in the history of the church.  Though the church felt the effects of the Stock Market crash of 1929 and the great Depression of the 1930s, these early founders held fast to their common vision.  They focused on keeping God’s church “alive and growing and their unwavering belief was rooted in the Bible and its teachings.” “For unto whomsoever much is given, of him shall be much required.” (Luke 12:48b).   At the conclusion of the Great Depression in 1939 the congregation had grown to appoint of needing a larger edifice for tis worshipers. 

Tally Ho was among the first churches in Granville County, Orange County and Durham Counties to join the East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist Association.  

Tally Ho Baptist Church continued to make strides throughout the 1940’s through the 1970s. During these times several renovation projects were undertaken.  During some of the projects, electricity was added to the church.  Heat changed to oil and then to electricity.  And the creation of more auxiliaries gave members a greater opportunity to serve.  Another land purchase was made in the 1970s.  The 1980s through the turn of the 21st Century have found Tally Ho Missionary Baptist Church still focused on the wishes of Our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ.  Still another renovation project was completed at the turn of the 21st Century under the leadership of pastor, Rev. Moses Fletcher’s administration.   



Union Chapel Baptist Church
Pastor, Rev. Dr. Harold Trice, Sr.
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1864 - 2014
Many years after the Civil War, the black man was given freedom to worship God; however, there was no adequate building to have worship services.  The people wanted a place where the Word of God could be preached. Through honoring God, we were proud of our noble past and wanted to share it with others. Through prayer and faith, churches began to be built, many in the form of “Bush Harbors”. 

In the year 1864, there were two small churches in the same area. Both churches were little one -room wooden buildings. One by the name of Greenwood Chapel Baptist Church; Reverend Pro Green served as pastor. The other, by the name of Green’s Chapel Baptist Church did not have a pastor at that time. The two churches decided that it would be better for all if they would unite and combine the two churches. Since both churches used the name “Chapel” and were uniting to worship God, they decided that the new Church name would be “Union Chapel Missionary Baptist Church”.

Pastor Pro Green served well as the first pastor of Union Chapel Missionary Baptist Church. When his service was completed, a pastor was called to serve by the name of Reverend Turner Bobbitt. Pastor Bobbitt was a sincere minister and served for many years prior to his death.  The next pastor called to serve was Reverend Walter Jones. Pastor Jones only stayed for a short period of time, but he continued in the tradition of his predecessors to worship and serve God. The fourth pastor of Union Chapel Missionary Baptist Church was Reverend Norman Aaron Trice. Pastor Trice was meek and humble combined with the strength of being a great organizer. He served as pastor from 1932-1981 (49 years) until retirement from his pastoral duties. Under his guidance and leadership, Union Chapel prospered into one of the most progressive churches in the community. The church family grew and a new church building was erected in the town of Butner. A groundbreaking ceremony was held on the second Sunday in November 1975. In March 1976 the building of the new church began. Rev. Norman A. Trice and the church members moved in to the new church on November 8, 1976.

On February 12, 1981, the church suffered a great loss at Reverend Norman A. Trice’s death. The members knew he wanted Union Chapel to continue to strive forward. The church knew that Rev. Trice had a son who was also a minister. That son, Rev. Harold F. Trice, Sr. was asked to serve as pastor of Union Chapel Missionary Baptist Church. He accepted the position in April 1981.  Reverend Trice has continued to serve as pastor by not only building on the works of his father, but also bringing new ideas to ensure the continued progress of the church. He teaches us to reach out to others in love and to share our spirit and blessings with others. Throughout the years, Union Chapel Baptist Church has worked in the service for our Lord and Savior, Jesus the Christ. When this is done, others are able to see the joy and salvation that He brings and we all become “One Body in Christ”.

Reverend Trice’s vision of retiring the church’s debt was achieved on Sunday morning, November 29, 1992 when the mortgage papers were presented and burned. In commemoration of this celebration, portraits of the former pastor, Reverend Norman Aaron Trice and our present pastor, Reverend Harold F. Trice, Sr., were unveiled. In addition, the Crucifix was purchased by the church and presented, along with the altar and Holy bible by Brother Carl Trice. 

In the year 1999, the church opened a savings account for the purpose of building a new fellowship hall. Pastor Trice, Mr. Willie B. Cozart and Mrs. Delois Bell-Johnson formulated the Building/Finance Committee. Mr. Christopher Ferguson, Loan Officer at RBC Centura and Mr. Benjamin Mixon, owner of Mixon Construction Company, worked diligently with Pastor Trice, chairperson , and Brother Cozart, our Project Superintendent until the loan was approved and finalized. Mixon Construction Company, supervised by Mr. Neal Adams was the builder. In March 2001, the groundbreaking ceremony took place, and after approximately seven (7) months the new fellowship hall project was completed, Mr. Seth Joyner donated new commercial appliances for the kitchen. In October 2001, our Homecoming Celebration Feast was held in the new fellowship hall. 

In early 2002, a vision of a renovation project was brought forth to Pastor Trice. After receiving his blessings, a committee of 31 church members was formed. Each member pledged $1,300.00 towards this project. Over the course of several months, various ventures were completed to assist committee members in achieving their goal. October 2003, the renovation project was completed. The interior and exterior of the church was newly painted, the balcony and choir stand were remodeled. New carpet, light fixtures, pews chancel furniture and choir stand chairs were placed in the sanctuary, which gave Union Chapel Missionary Baptist Church a wonderful facelift.  In March 2006, the paving project was completed, a new furnace was 
Installed and tow new church vans were purchased. 

Matthew 17:20, And Jesus said unto them, Because of your unbelief: for verily I say unto you, if ye have faith as a grain of mustard seed, ye shall say unto this mountain, Remove hence to yonder place; and it shall remove; and nothing shall be impossible unto you. God’s word is clearly evident by the fruits of our founding elders of Union Chapel Missionary Baptist Church. Still today, the spirit of unity lives through anointed leadership and a committed congregation. The completion of the church’s renovation project was completed without borrowing from a lending institution. Thanks be to God for the great things He has done!



Union Grove Baptist Church
Pastor, Rev. Rufus Johnson, Sr. 
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Union Grove Baptist Church had its beginnings in 1888 when the church purchased 9/10 of an acre on May 4, for $1.00.  The first church was made of logs and the first founding members were J. Wiley Bradsher and his wife, Noveller Villines Bradsher.  Around 1903, J. Wiley Bradsher was called to the ministry and became pastor of the church. He held the post for more than 40 years until his death in 1945.  During Rev. Bradsher’s pastorship, the congregation left the log building and moved into the frame structure, which was later used until 1956 as a public school for African American students and still stands today on the east side of the church property.  Around 1921, the growing congregation moved into its third building which remains part of the present day church.  From the late 1930s until 1970 when it returned to its original name, the church was known as The Church of the City of God in the Wilderness. Rev. Luther Bradsher pastored the church from 1946 to 1960 and Rev. Eulise Chavis was pastor from 1960 to 1989 when he retired.  

On March 17, 1990, the Union Grove congregation called the Reverend Rufus L. Johnson, Sr. to pastor the Church.  Though his calling stood on its own, as destiny would have it, Rev. Johnson is the great-grandson of Church founders, Rev. and Mrs. J. Wiley Bradsher.  Rev. Johnson’s first sermon as pastor was delivered on April 15, 1990.  His text was Matthew 28:6 and was entitled “No Excuse.”

Since assuming the pastorship, Rev. Johnson has kept the church on the path started by its early founders, but he has also strived to keep the church relevant to current times, assuring the gospel message is accessible to all and inspiring to the young leaders of the future.  He realized early on that the future of the church is inextricably tied to the direction of our youth--as they go, so goes the church.  To that end, Rev. Johnson has focused like a laser on children and teens.  First Sundays have been dedicated to the Church youth, who carry out the non-sermon aspects of morning service such as devotion, announcements, prayer and responsive readings. Over the years the Church has established several programs targeted to our youth, including the All-Stars, the Youth Choir and the Bible Study Supremes.  The Youth Committee is charged with guiding our young people and planning programs for them.  The Education Committee is also youth-focused, recognizing the academic achievements of young scholars and also providing college scholarships to select students of excellence.  Vacation Bible School and Sunday School for all persons are core programs of the church and have grown in strength and participation.  The Sunday School takes out-of-state summer trips which are fun and educational.  

The Church has provided workshops and tutoring programs to help students achieve academic excellence.  School teachers from areas school districts are regularly invited to Sunday morning service to worship with their students who attend Union Grove, and every year Rev. Johnson checks student report cards and visits our young students at their schools.  Rev. Johnson is always mindful of training children in the ways of the Lord-- since coming to Union Grove, he and his wife, Marva, have raised two sons and a daughter.  They now have two granddaughters, who, though quite small, already know the word of prayer.

In 1997 Rev. Johnson shepherded the congregation through a major remodeling project and construction of a new sanctuary.  Worship services are presently held in the fourth sanctuary the Church has known since it was first established.  The old (third) sanctuary was remodeled and converted into the present fellowship hall.  In addition, in 2007 the Church looked toward its future and purchased a 71 acre tract of land which will allow the Church to grow and further serve the community’s spiritual and human needs.

Also, Union Grove has grown from one monthly Sunday worship service in 1990 to four—the fourth having been added in April 1997.  In Baptist tradition, the fifth Sunday service remains in the hands of the Missionary Circle.  Accordingly, with Sunday service being held every Sunday, five choirs participate in the Music Ministry—the Senior, Youth, Inspirational, Male and Mass choirs.  Pastor Johnson has re-organized church administration.  While the Board of Deacons still establishes policy and thus sets the course for the church, under Rev. Johnson’s guidance, the Church is more inclusive and participatory.  It is now guided by many committees which have been given charge of specific areas such as transportation, first aid, church history, budget and finance, family support, athletic ministry, veteran’s ministry, church ushers and pastor’s aide.    Rev. Johnson emphasizes the Church’s cooperation with its fellow churches through the East Cedar Grove Missionary Baptist Association.  The Church has maintained membership in the Association dating back to its early days, but Union Grove has taken a more active role within the organization.  Following Pastor Johnson’s guidance, the Church is also supportive of and makes direct financial contributions to other churches and missions such as the Lott Carey Foreign Mission Convention.

Over recent years, the Missionary Department has grown.  Traditionally, left to the women of the church, today men have joined in the mission.  The Missionary Department has three divisions: Senior, Young Adult and Youth.  In addition to planning worship services on fifth Sundays, the missionaries participate in several programs to assist the less fortunate with clothing, shoes, eyeglasses and food.  They adopt families-in-need for the Christmas holiday and visit those who are shut-in and living apart from their families in care homes.  They collect mobile phones for recycling and use by battered women.  The Missionary Department holds special recognition programs for Church seniors over the age of 70 and sponsors the Black and White Ball, a formal social event and evening of fun where adults can socialize with one another while adhering to basic Christian principles.  

Since its beginning, Union Grove has been part of the fabric of Hurdle Mills and Person County, North Carolina—spreading the gospel and serving the community.  Community service has continued throughout the pastorship of Rev. Johnson.  The Church sponsors blood drives with the Red Cross; raises funds for the fight against cancer; helps neighbors through hardships such as fires and natural disasters like Hurricane Floyd and the Haitian earthquake of 2010; supports area schools; supports the NAACP and the Person County Committee on the Affairs of Black Citizens; offers mentor programs and prison ministry; and offers workshops on topics such as nutrition, health, personal finance, wills and estates, marriage and land loss prevention.

In 2014, as we give this account of our history, we continue to pray that our work has been pleasing to the Lord and that, if it is His will, we continue serving Him until the day of His return.


Union Baptist Church, Durham North Carolina
Pastor, Reverend Dr. Kenneth Hammond, 
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Established 1897

Union Baptist Church (UBC) is a 117 year old, spirit-filled, multigenerational church with a holistic ministry. From humble beginnings in 1897, the church has come a long way.  Initially organized as a Sunday School which met in a log cabin on Corporation Street, the church shortly took the name North Durham Baptist Church. Services were held once a month and the first pastor, Rev. Paul Yancey, (who was part-time) was called. The church moved to its first permanent location on Glendale Avenue, changed its name to Union Baptist Church (because the former name resembled another congregation too closely) and called its first full-time pastor, Rev. Jerome Cozart.  The church grew under his tenure and the subsequent 3 pastors: Rev. John Sanford, Rev. James Baines and Rev. John Lewis.  It was during Rev. Lewis’ pastorate, with the membership nearing 400 that the decision was made to build a new edifice.  However, dissension about the move led to some members leaving and helping form another church in Durham, Mt. Gilead Baptist Church.  Rev. Lewis who was overseeing the relocation initiative died before it could be completed.  Rev. Clarence Dunn succeeded him as pastor and was instrumental in organizing the Missionary Circle and the Usher Board.  He continued guiding the church towards relocation, but he also passed before it was completed.  

 In his stead, Rev. A. S. Croom was called in 1926.  A highly esteemed and experienced pastor already, his leadership solidified a firm institutional foundation for the church. He helped retire outstanding debt, established an abiding organizational structure, birthed new auxiliaries and strengthened Sunday School.  During his 37 year tenure, the church grew numerically and spiritually.  The church built and moved into a new edifice on N. Roxboro Street (its current location) in 1955.  It was a state of the art facility, with a fellowship hall, ample office space and an educational wing. UBC was active in social issues and missionary work. New choirs, Sunday School classes and the Deaconess board were formed. Rev. Croom pastored UBC until his death in 1963. 

As UBC faced the challenge of replacing a much beloved pastor, they prayerfully selected Dr. Grady Demus Davis, Sr. to be the eighth pastor in 1964. Holding degrees from Shaw University, Andover-Newton Theological School and Boston University, he combined his academic depth with his spiritual leadership to take Union to yet another apex. Under his leadership, the Deacon Board was expanded and a Finance Committee was organized.  The secretary’s office was remodeled, a library established and the Board of Christian Education was organized.  Numerous organizations were added including the Hospitality Committee, Recreation, Young Adult and Senior Departments, nursery, additional choirs, the Youth Church, Alcoholic and Narcotics Anonymous. Capital improvements were made, new properties and transportation vehicles purchased.  He directed the church’s efforts with this mandate: “We arenow involved in sensitivity training designed to update and make our programs, missions, messages, methods and ministries in a pluralistic changing society of what’s happening now.”  He believed that Union Baptist was a church “of the people, for the people, by the people and for God.”  This vision was  further demonstrated by its strong voice in the political and social arenas of the community.

 In March 1990, after having served for twenty-six years, Dr. Grady Davis died. His ministry had been felt throughout the community and his death left a great void in the church and community. Once again, UBC had to take on the responsibility of calling a pastor.  Just as the world had changed since the 1964 call of Dr. Davis, so had the processes used. The church now had a Pulpit Committee which included laity in the selection process along with the officers.  In June 1991, Rev. Kenneth R. Hammond was elected as the ninth pastor of UBC and installed on January 19, 1992. A native of Winterville, NC, he held degrees from East Carolina University and Shaw University, and completed further studies at Indiana University and North Carolina State University. 

UBC is not the same church that Rev. Hammond came to pastor twenty-three years ago.  During his tenure, 4000 thousand persons have united with the congregation and the membership has grown to more than 7000; the church offers three Sunday services; 7:30 am, 9:30 am and 11:15 am and Youth Church; has a closed circuit system and Live streams on Sunday.  Union is a “high tech church with a holy touch.” It has dedicated disciples who carry forth the work of the gospel through many new and creative ministries including:  children’s, teens, young adult and senior adult ministries, an expanded education ministry, Back Pack Buddies, recovery and prison ministries.  Existing ministry areas have broadened to include liturgical dance, mime ministry, Boy scouts, Girl scouts, the Deacons Family Ministry, Economic Ministry and numerous health initiatives guided by a Parish Nurse. The Music Ministry expanded to include a string quartet, brass ensemble, percussionist and guitars. 

Pastor Hammond has led the church to become a tithing church, the budget has quadrupled and an endowment has been established.  UBC has consistently been recognized as one of the leading churches in terms of mission support by state and national conventions.  There is a new spirit of unity and cooperation among the congregation, no small feat for disciples which span every generation.  In September 2000 the church moved into its new worship center and administrative space and in 2008 Union Independent School (now Global Scholars Academy), a fully endowed private school for the youth of Northeast Central Durham was opened.   From the rental of the log cabin on Corporation Street utilizing borrowed tablets, Union Baptist Church has been a bulwark for its disciples and the community for over 100 years and stood the test of time.  By the grace of God and the dynamic leadership of Pastor Hammond, we will continue to meet the needs of God’s people and the challenges of the 21st century.



United Christian Missionary Baptist Church
(Meeting in Smith-Thomas Convention Center) 
Pastor, Rev. Earl Williams

[image: ]
Established 2002

United Christian Missionary Baptist Church’s origin is anchored in the splitting of the Pope’s Chapel United Christian Church congregation located in Youngsville, NC in 2002.  In that same year, 2002, United Christian Missionary Baptist Church in Youngsville was established.  At first it held worship services at the Caucasian Methodist Church, Bullocks United Methodist Church, in Creedmoor, NC.  Around 2004 the church moved to its current location at the Smith Thomas Convention in Creedmoor, NC.  The first pastor was Rev. Eddie Harper from Raleigh, NC followed by Rev. James Wornely, Rev. James Wade, and Rev. Andre Harper.  Currently the pastor is Rev. Earl Williams.

Deacon Mable Williams is chairperson of the Board of Deacons and founding member, along with Angela Jenkins, Rev. Eddie Crudup.  Every 3rd Sunday the church visits Carver Living Center and on the 4th Sunday the church goes to Rose Manor.   The church has an outreach ministry.  Efforts are underway to help children in the summer with meal service.




West Durham Baptist Church
Pastor, Reverend Dr. Terry Thomas
1901 Athens Avenue, Durham, North Carolina


[image: http://www.westdurhambaptist.org/New_Church_op_800x509.jpg]
Established 1892

In the autumn of 1892, Reverend W. H. Stanfield of Durham County followed the vision that God had placed in his heart and founded the West Durham Baptist Church. It was organized in a one room box house on Ferrell Street (now Maxwell Street) in Durham, NC .Under the leadership of the sixth pastor, Reverend Johnson, the church purchased a lot on Thaxton Avenue.

Under the faithful and progressive leadership of Reverend T. C. Graham, the West Durham Baptist Church became the first African-American congregation in Durham, NC to build an education building.  Also, a credit union was organized in 1951 at the church and proved to be very beneficial to the membership and community.

The church, central to the community on Thaxton Avenue and the Brookstown community, was displaced by the Durham Freeway and Urban Renewal.  Therefore, the church had to relocate.  In 1967, the first phase of the building project was completed. The church held a groundbreaking ceremony at the present location on Nixon and Athens on Sunday April 13, 1969. The church structure was completed and furnished under Dr. Frederick Terry’s leadership.

In 2001, Rev. Dr. Terry Thomas, our current shepherd, became pastor. He promotes outreach to the community especially for teaching the younger generation. He is a caring and prolific writer. This energetic and passionate leader’s vision for his church family and mankind is to strengthen their faith and trust in God.


image2.jpeg




image3.jpeg




image4.jpeg




image5.png




image6.png




image7.jpeg




image8.jpeg
FIRST COMMUN
BAPTIST CHURCH g
m""‘"““"mmm.

G -
== EE





image9.jpeg




image10.jpeg




image11.jpeg




image12.jpeg




image13.png




image14.jpeg




image15.jpeg
. |
! EL
B BAPTIST CHURCH

- — ; %





image16.jpeg




image17.png




image18.jpeg




image19.jpeg




image20.jpeg




image21.jpeg




image22.jpeg




image23.jpeg




image24.emf

image25.png




image26.jpeg




image27.jpeg
OLIVE GROVE MISSIONARY BAPTIST CHURCH, INC.
P. 0. BOX 931 - 5014 OLD HIGHWAY #75
OXFORD, NC 27565

(919) 693-5415

Established 1865

Congratulations to the East Cedar Grove Association for 120 years of service.
As we celebrate our contributions and milestones, we also want to give honor to
Jesus Christ who has allowed all of these dreams to come true.
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